



Policy No:

30th January 2017 **Date of First Issue:**

June 2023 **Last Review Date: Document Author:** Principal

Authorised By: Committee of Management

Next Review Date: May 2024 Northside Christian College is a small school with big ambitions for each student. The College is set in a tertiary education precinct in the City of Whittlesea in Bundoora, Victoria. Northside provides engaging learning opportunities for students from Prep through to Year 12 with the mission to transform lives through Christ and the wonder of learning. We provide an innovative learning framework within a safe and supportive Christian environment. Our College community invites you to join us as we partner with your child on their educational journey.

The College provides a number of pathways at the senior levels of the school including a comprehensive range of VCE subjects, the VCE VM, and access to VET programs, VSV and VSL Language extension. Students participate in VET courses through the Northern Melbourne VET Cluster. The Whittlesea Tech School is located within driving distance, two major universities (La Trobe and RMIT) are with 10 minutes of the College and Melbourne Polytechnic is a short drive away.

A partnership between parents, staff and students is encouraged to support student success. Care is taken to engage parents in conversations about pathways planning through Morrisby counselling, Student Support Groups, Parent-Student-Teacher Interviews, Individualised Learning Plans as required, coordination with Student Wellbeing officers and targeted pathways and wellbeing appointments.



Please Note:

The Northside Christian College VCE Student Policy Handbook 2024 draws on information published by the Victorian Curriculum and Assessment Authority (the Government body responsible for accrediting the VCE and VCE VM).

The Victorian Curriculum and Assessment Authority guidelines may be found in the 'VCE and VCAL Administrative Handbook' available on line at:

https://www.vcaa.vic.edu.au/administration/vce-vcal-handbook/Pages/index.aspx

Advice on matters related to the administration of Victorian Certificate of Education (VCE) assessment is published annually in the VCE and VCAL Administrative Handbook. Updates to matters related to the administration of VCE assessment are published in the VCAA Bulletin.

This Policy Handbook is for students studying VCE studies in 2024 and should be retained for reference throughout the 2024 academic school year.

Any questions relating to the Senior School program at Northside Christian College should be directed to the Director of Learning – Senior School, Mrs Lenna Waters or the Principal, Mr Michael Bond.



VCE Student Policy Handbook

Policy Development and Management

Document Title:	VCE Student Policy Handbook	
Policy No:	4	
Date of First Issue:	30 th January 2017	
Last Review Date:	June 2023	
Document Author:	Principal	
Authorised By:	Committee of Management	
Next Review Date:	May 2024	

Contents	5.17 Unit 3 & 4 – General Achievement Test (GAT)34
Welcome from the Principal9	5.18 Unit 3 & 4 External Examinations 34
1.0 Introduction 10	5.19 Assistive Technology34
2.0 Commonly Used Terms11	5.20 Storage and Sampling of Student Work
3.0 Introducing the Victorian Certificate of Education	and Assessment Documents35
4.0 Overview of the VCE14	5.21 Behavioural Expectations of Students During Assessment Tasks35
4.1 VCE - Vocational Major 145	5.22 Out of Class Learning Activities37
4.2 Changes in Course Selection 156	5.23 Delivery of the VCE37
4.3 VCE Attendance Policy17	6.0 The Vocational Education and Training
4.4 VCE Acceleration Program 19	(VET) Pathway388
4.4 Administrative Matters and Student	7.0 Special Provision39
Privacy 19	7.1 Curriculum Delivery and Student
4.6 Students Seeking EAL Status 20	Programs40
5.0 Assessment in the VCE	7.2 School-Based Assessment
5.1 Learning Outcomes	7.3 Special Examination Arrangements40
5.2 Satisfactory Completion of Learning	7.4 Derived Examination Score40
Outcomes 23	7.5 Procedures for Applications41
5.3 Unit 1 and 2 Assessment Tasks 23	8.0 Lost, Stolen or Damaged Work41
5.4 Reporting	9.0 Homework / Online Lessons42
5.5 Unit 3 and 4 School Assessed Coursework (SACs)	10.0 Private Study42
5.6 Unit 3 and 4 School Assessed Tasks	10.1 Approved Home Study42
(SATs)25	11.0 Student Mentoring43
5.7 Authentication of SACs and SATs 26	12.0 Time Management43
5.8 Authentication Process	13.0 VCE Review Panel44
5.9 Academic Integrity and Plagiarism 28	14.0 Distance Education44
5.10 Unit 3 and 4 Study Scores	15.0 Student Use of Vehicles45
5.11 Moderation of Unit 3 & 4 SAC Scores29	15.1 Passengers in student-driven
5.12 The Australian Tertiary Admission Rank	Vehicles45
(ATAR)30	16.0 Late Arrival and Early Departure45
5.13 Appeals Against College Decisions 31	17.0 Promotion in the Senior School46
5.14 Redemption from an 'N' Result in a	18.0 VCE (Baccalaureate)47
SAC32	19.0 Useful Links47
5.15 Extension of Time for Assessment Tasks and Alternate SACs	Evaluation48
5.15 Extension of Time for Learning Tasks34	Related Policies49
	A range of appendices are published at the end of this policy handbook.

When the term 'VCE' is used it will generally refer to both VCE and VCE VM unless otherwise noted.

Background Information

Northside Christian College is a non-denominational, coeducational, Christian College that commenced in 1979. The College is committed to providing high quality Christian Education in a caring, encouraging, learning community to families of Melbourne's northern suburbs. We aim to maximise the potential of every child, equipping them for lifelong learning and developing their character based on Biblical values.

Our mission: 'Transforming lives through Christ and the wonder of learning', articulates the College's commitment to preparing a generation for lifelong learning in order that they might have the capacity to make a positive difference in their community. Through the design and structuring of the College's learning programs and state of the art learning environments, the College community is well equipped to nurture and develop the unique talent, gifting and interests of every child.

The College aims to challenge each student to achieve their best, while providing students with an opportunity to study a broad range of subjects. The College curriculum, while developed to meet the requirements of the Australian Curriculum Framework and Government requirements, provides students with a great opportunity to study subjects across a wide range of learning areas. The College has developed the school curriculum to place a significant emphasis on Literacy and Numeracy.

As a Christian Learning Community we have over forty years of tradition in educating our students to live out the timeless values of perseverance, humility and integrity, preparing our young people for meaningful and purposeful engagement in every area of their lives.

Our Student Leadership Program provides opportunities for students to develop and put into practice their leadership potential in serving their fellow students and the wider community. We seek to be a 'school without borders', and increasingly work alongside local universities, local Tech Schools and other organisations to maximise access to high quality learning environments.

The Prep to Year 12 learning community at Northside Christian College has a small village feel; a nurturing and caring environment where every child is valued. Our programs are designed to meet students' individual needs, whatever they are, seeking to ensure that every child's unique, God-given qualities are developed. High value is placed on the development of resilience, leadership and character through the College.

Our VCE program offers students small classes and an individualised approach to supporting learning. For a growing family-friendly school, we offer a remarkable range of learning and co-curricular opportunities. The College also offers the Victorian Certificate of Education Vocational Major for students in Years 11 & 12. The VCE and VCE VM also includes acceleration pathways for eligible students in Year 10.

The College honours the faithful pioneers from Northside Christian Centre (now Encompass Church) who took hold of God's vision and planted the College in 1979. We look to the future with hope, confident of our calling and determined in our commitment to train a skilled and Godly generation of young people to take their place in the community, living purposeful lives in God's service.

Northside Christian College is a member of Christian Schools Australia, a National body with member schools in all states.

It is our prayer and desire that every student will have a positive experience at school. A positive experience involves students developing healthy relationships, achieving their personal best, maintaining physical and emotional wellbeing and developing a greater understanding of Christian faith and character.

Mission Statement

Transforming lives through Christ and the wonder of learning.

Vision Statement

To be an inspirational Christian learning community.

Core Values

"Three things will last forever—faith, hope, and love—and the greatest of these is love."

1 Corinthians 13:13

Image: Northside Christian College Core Values



Our Philosophy

Northside Christian College provides students with Primary and Secondary educational opportunities based on Christian values, designed to develop students' knowledge, skills, understanding and character.

We believe every student is made uniquely in the image of God. Therefore, the individual needs of each student are our greatest concern. Within a Christian context at Northside Christian College, we aim to nurture the growth and development of the whole person – intellectually, physically, emotionally, spiritually and socially. We believe that this growth should be firmly based on the student's growing personal relationship with God and other people.

The development of students at Northside Christian College takes place in community. Our College is built on shared foundations of Biblical faith, values and beliefs and a commitment to mutual care and respect. We see our role as forming partnerships with parents and carers to educate their children.

We believe that in order to develop students to their full potential the College must ensure that all aspects of the child's health and wellbeing are supported. We believe students should be nurtured in a supportive environment that has clear boundaries within mutual respect and a healthy working relationship between parents and carers, teachers and students. Respect involves treating other people as you would like to be treated yourself. The College implements a discipline program which aims for the restoration of relationships. We are committed to embedding a culture of child safety, including a zero tolerance of child abuse within our school.

Northside Christian College aims to offer an education that encourages both academic learning and the development of Godly values and wisdom. These values help to form the foundations for life and are vitally important to the development of each student. The presentation of these values in the curriculum and their demonstration in the lives of our staff serve to reinforce what is taught at home and in the family church.

We encourage students to be active participants in their educational journey. The College is committed to supporting each student through collaborative and differentiated approach in order to meet their learning needs.

Enactment of the College Philosophy

The College Vision, Mission, Values and Objectives are central to all practices within the College and form the basis of the College's Strategic Plan and Annual Action Plan.

The College Philosophy is communicated to the students, parents, staff and the College community through key documents and publications. These include but are not limited to:

- Annual Report
- College Website
- Handbooks
- Staff Induction Program
- College newsletters

It is expected that all school improvement strategies and organisational practices relate to the College Philosophy in alignment with the Vision, Mission, and Objectives of the College.

The Committee of Management review written policies on a continuing basis to ensure consistency with the College's Vision, Mission, Philosophy, and Objectives. Policies are also reviewed and revised as a result of newly enacted state and/or federal legislation, as a result of research and/or policy development as presented by state and/or national organisations and agencies, or for other reasons as determined by the Committee of Management.

Statement of Democratic Principles

Northside Christian College was established in 1979 within the guidelines for the establishment of a school within the State of Victoria. The College is committed to compliance with State and Federal Law and adherence to the policies and expectations of legally appointed authorities that oversee the operation of educational institutions in this State. In this regard, we recognise:

- 1. The principle of elected government at Federal, State and local levels of government;
- 2. The rule of Law, and the right of the parliament and legal authorities to make and enforce compliance with that Law;
- 3. The equal rights of all people before the Law;
- 4. The freedom of religion;
- 5. The freedom of speech and association;
- 6. The values of openness, inclusion and tolerance.

We further state that the College strongly supports and applauds the Government's recognition of the right of faith-based schools to actively teach and model the beliefs, tenets and practices of the faith and to employ staff who actively practice and live by them.

Objectives

Northside Christian College aims to:

- Provide an education of a high academic standard that is based on an acceptance of the Lordship of Christ, and an acceptance of the Bible as the revealed and inspired word of God;
- Cater for the individuality of the learner and their gifting in God and stress the function of the learner as a member of the Body of Christ and the College community;
- Train the learner in the moral and ethical standards of the Bible and assist them to acquire a Biblical world and life view and an appreciation of the rights of others to hold differing views;
- Develop the learner's creative capacity, critical thinking ability, leadership skills and ability to work interdependently with others to solve problems and serve the community;
- Foster self-discipline in the learner through goal setting, responsibility and self-motivation;
- Stress cooperation rather than competition and foster the development of the gifts, skills and abilities of the learner for the service of Jesus Christ in the Body of Christ and the community;
- Develop enhanced partnerships between parents, students, staff and the community with the intention to strengthen the teaching and learning process;
- Provide a safe and loving environment through a sense of belonging to the family of God;
- Develop a culture of continuous improvement, professional development and pastoral support among staff and the College community;
- Ensure effective stewardship of the assets and resources God has entrusted to the College;
- Effectively communicate with parents and the wider community.

Welcome from the Principal

Dear Students and Parents,

The Senior School years provide our students with a wonderful opportunity to prepare themselves for their chosen pathway. Hard work and dedication during these years can provide a wide range of rewarding opportunities during the next few years. I wish to encourage our students to aim high and attempt to regularly achieve their personal best during these Senior School years.

The Senior School students at Northside Christian College are prompted to embrace the challenges of their Year 10 - 12 studies. The VCE can present significant challenges in terms of increased workloads, multiple deadlines, and the pressure of assessments and examinations. Students are encouraged to approach these challenges with a clear focus, dedication, and a determination to achieve their personal best.

There has been a great deal of research and material published on managing stress and the pressures of challenges such as the VCE. Students are encouraged to manage their time well and consider the balance between study, work commitments, regular exercise, family life, and other social pursuits. Developing a good habit of eating well, staying hydrated, praying, and maintaining good sleeping habits all contribute to our ability to manage the demands of stress. Students are also advised to create a dedicated study space and develop a study timetable that is shared and discussed with their parents. We are grateful our students are also supported by mentors, our Student Wellbeing Team, and Inclusive Education Team at Northside.

Completing Year 12 is a special achievement; however, achieving excellence is tough and demanding. Students are encouraged to set goals for the year and work diligently towards achieving them. The staff at Northside Christian College look forward to supporting each student in their attempt to achieve their own personal academic goals.

This VCE Student Policy Handbook contains essential information regarding the VCE policies and procedures of both the VCAA and Northside Christian College. Knowledge and application of its contents will prevent many unnecessary problems throughout the year.

We wish you every success and God's blessing as you take on the responsibilities of being a Senior School student at Northside Christian College. We pray you feel supported and challenged to achieve your personal best.

Working together,

Michael Bond Principal

1.0 Introduction

This handbook provides helpful advice for Northside Christian College Victorian Certificate of Education (VCE) students and parents. It will provide you with invaluable information as you proceed through the VCE. This handbook provides policies related to the VCE; make sure you read them carefully. Keep this document on hand and in a safe place as you will need to refer to it throughout the year.

Parents and students are required to read this document and complete the Parent and Student Declaration Form at the commencement of each academic year (Appendix A). These policies outline the requirements that students must adhere to in order for the VCE to be awarded. Further clarification and explanation is available on the Victorian Curriculum and Assessment Authority (VCAA) website or by appointment with the VCE Learning Coordinator.

Northside Christian College has high expectations of its students, in particular its Senior School students. The College must be able to rely on its Senior students, both within and outside of the College environment. In all circumstances students are expected to act in a mature and responsible manner. All Senior School students are expected to follow College rules and policies. Senior School students are expected to wear the College uniform correctly.

The VCE years provide an opportunity for students to further develop leadership skills and to serve as role models amongst younger students. As a result, VCE students are expected to undertake leadership roles within the College community. There are many avenues for Senior School students to present themselves in this manner and it is expected that students will make the most of these opportunities to participate in the life of the College community.

Key Contacts

The following people can be contacted if questions are of a general nature:

Principal Mr Michael Bond

Director of Learning – Senior School Mrs Lenna Waters

Careers and Pathways Coordinator Mrs Lenna Waters

Director of Inclusive Education Mrs Serene Eng

Head of Student Wellbeing Mrs Heather Cootee

2.0 Commonly Used Terms

Assessment of level of performance

Assessment of levels of performance in Units 1 and 2 is the responsibility of the College. The VCAA supervises the assessment of all students undertaking studies at Units 3 & 4 level.

Assessment Task

A task set by the teacher to assess students' achievements of unit outcomes for School-assessed Coursework (see also Outcomes). This can be a SAC or a SAT

ATAR - Australian Tertiary Admission Rank

The Australian Tertiary Admission Rank (ATAR) is a number from 0.00 to 99.95, which represents a student's rank in comparison with other students completing VCE in that same year. It is calculated using a student's Unit 3 & 4 scaled study scores, and is used by universities and TAFEs to select students for courses. A minimum of 4 studies must be scored to receive an ATAR.

Authentication

The process of ensuring that the work submitted by students for assessment is their own.

Breach of rules

Students are expected to abide by both College policy regarding the VCE, and sign a declaration agreeing to abide by VCAA rules. If the rules are not adhered to in any way a variety of penalties are applied, depending upon the situation.

Derived Examination Score (DES)

Provision available for students who missed an external Unit 3 & 4 examination or whose external Unit 3 & 4 examination performance has been impaired due to illness or other personal circumstances.

External Examinations - Unit 3 & 4

External assessments set and marked by the VCAA. All VCE Units 3 & 4 studies have at least one examination. Most written examinations are held in October and November. Performance examinations and oral examinations are held in October.

GAT - General Achievement Test

All students enrolled in one or more Unit 3 & 4 sequence must sit the General Achievement Test (GAT). This is a general knowledge test used by VCAA to verify school-based marks. The GAT score itself does not count towards the end of year results, but it is an important part of the moderation process. The GAT consists of Part A and Part B.

Outcomes

What a student must know and be able to do in order to satisfactorily complete a unit as specified in the VCE study design.

Prerequisites

Subjects which must be completed for admission to tertiary courses. In addition, Unit 3 is a prerequisite for all Unit 4 subjects.

Redemption

Providing a student with an opportunity to complete a further assessment task in an area where their performance was previously unsatisfactory.

SAC - School Assessed Coursework

The tasks or activities that teachers use to assess whether a student has met the outcomes they need to in order to satisfactorily complete the unit of study. They are typically conducted at school in test conditions over one or two lessons. Units of study will usually have at least three SAC's, although this can vary from unit to unit.

SAT - School Assessed Task

More practical units such as Art Making and Exhibiting, Media and Visual Communication and Design for example, include assessments that take longer to complete than one or two lessons. In fact, they are often completed through the duration of the unit. These assessments are called School Assessed Tasks, or commonly, SATs.

Satisfactory Completion

Decision made by the College that a student has demonstrated achievement of outcomes for a unit. Students receive an 'S' for the satisfactory completion of a unit. If they do not satisfactorily complete a unit, they receive an 'N' indicating not satisfactory. A 'J' result is used when the student is no longer attending classes and has not submitted work for assessment. Where a student receives 'N' or 'J' for one or both Units 3 & 4 sequence, the student will not receive a Study Score for the study. VTAC policy is that the study will not contribute to the student's ATAR.

Scaling

The statistical process used to determine the degree of competition in each study by comparing the performance of the entire group of students in a study with their performance in all other studies in which they have achieved a study score.

Special Provision

Special arrangements that are made to allow students who are experiencing significant hardship the maximum opportunity to demonstrate the required knowledge and skills for a unit of study.

Semester

Equivalent to half a school year or two terms.

Sequence

The sequence is the order in which a student completes Units. For example, a student must study Units 3 & 4 in sequence.

Special Entry Access Scheme (SEAS)

The Special Entry Access Scheme (SEAS) is the umbrella program run by most institutions for applicants who have experienced educational disadvantage. The program allows selection officers to grant extra consideration for course entry to applicants, but it is not used as a replacement for course entry requirements. Students apply for SEAS through VTAC.

Special Examination Arrangements

Arrangements that are approved to meet the needs of students who have severe disabilities, illnesses or other circumstances that would affect their ability to undertake external examinations to their best ability.

Statement of Results

The document issued by the VCAA showing whether a student has successfully completed the VCE. It shows the graded assessment and scaled study scores for each sequence of Units 3 & 4 and a record of achievement (S or N) for all VCE subjects undertaken.

Statistical Moderation

The process used to ensure that schools' Unit 3 & 4 assessments are comparable throughout the State. It involves adjusting each school's coursework scores for each study to match the level and spread of the combined examination and GAT scores for the students in that school doing that study.

Study Design

A Study Design for each Unit 3 & 4 VCE study is published by the VCAA. It specifies the content for the study and how student work is to be assessed. Schools and other VCE providers must adhere to the requirements in the Study Designs.

Study Score

A Study Score is a number out of 50 that provides an indication of how well the student has completed the subject compared with all other students who were enrolled in that subject. It is based on students' results in school assessments and examinations.

Unit 1 and 2

Units within a VCE study designed to approximate the Year 11 level of difficulty.

Unit 3 and 4

Units within a VCE study designed to approximate the Year 12 level of difficulty.

VASS - VCE Administrative Software System

The Internet-based system used by schools to register students and enter VCE enrolments and results directly onto the VCAA central database.

VCAA - Victorian Curriculum Assessment Authority

The statutory body responsible for providing curriculum and assessment for Victorian students, including the Victorian Certificate of Education.

VCE - Victorian Certificate of Education

The qualification achieved by students in Victorian schools who satisfactorily complete at least 16 units of study including at least three of English, and three sequences of Units 3 & 4 other than English. Units of study are semester (half a year) length.

VCE VM – Victorian Certificate of Education Vocational Major

The VCE Vocational Major is a new vocational and applied learning program that sits within the VCE. The VCE Vocational Major is the replacement for the Intermediate and Senior VCAL. It is a two- year program over Year 11 and 12. Students who complete the VM achieve the VCE certificate with a Vocational Major appellation.

Vocational Education and Training (VET)

Nationally recognised vocational certificates that are integrated within the VCE.

VTAC - Victorian Tertiary Admissions Centre

The Victorian Tertiary Admissions Centre acts on behalf of Universities and TAFEs to coordinate the tertiary application process for Year 12 school leavers. VTAC is the body that calculates, distributes and utilises the Australian Tertiary Admission Rank (ATAR).

3.0 Introducing the Victorian Certificate of Education (VCE)

The Victorian Certificate of Education (VCE) is a well-recognised and valuable acknowledgement of achievement for students. Successful completion provides students with an opportunity to seek access to tertiary institutions as well as providing information to employers about a student's ability to cope with a wide range of complex tasks, meet deadlines and apply knowledge and skills to various problems.

In 2023 Victoria introduced a new integrated senior secondary certificate that brought together the two previous senior secondary certificates, the VCE and Victorian Certificate of Applied Learning (VCAL). This integration provides all students with learning opportunities to develop the skills and capabilities needed to support their transition into further education, work, and life.

For students aiming to enter the workforce via an apprenticeship or study at TAFE, Northside Christian College offers the VCE Vocational Major (VCE VM) as an appropriate pathway and an alternative to the VCE.

The VCAA requires details regarding the satisfactory completion of Outcomes and School Assessed Coursework (SACs) for each unit. As a requirement of the courses set down by the VCAA, policies have been established to ensure that the correct procedures are carried out in all schools.

A goal of the Northside Christian College Senior School faculty is to support each student to develop ethical and efficient work habits that will enable them to satisfactorily complete their VCE or VCE VM by the end of Year 12 and achieve their best in the process.

3.1. Transition Arrangements and Enrolment Options

In 2023, Northside Christian College fully transitioned to the VCE Vocational Major rather than teaching out VCAL. Students who undertake the vocational pathway in 2024 will enrol in VCE VM Units 1& 2 at Year 11. Year 12 students will undertake VCE VM Units 3 & 4.

The 2024 school year will remain a separate VCE or VCE VM enrolment for Year 11 and 12 students. Beginning in 2025, VCAA plans for a full integration of the two certificates and the ability to undertake units of study in both certificates. As the VCAA is still transitioning this certificate, more information will follow.

4.0 Overview of the VCE

The VCE is made up of a series of studies, each of which is divided into units that require one semester to complete. Generally, Year 11 students will complete Units 1 & / or 2 of their chosen studies, whereas Year 12 students will complete Units 3 & 4 (which must be studied as a sequence). It is quite common however, under the College's VCE Acceleration Program, for Year 10 students to study a Unit 1 & 2 sequence and then study the Unit 3 & 4 sequence of that same subject whilst in Year 11.

It is expected that Year 11 students will undertake 12 Units of Study, of which a Unit 1 & 2 course from the English group is compulsory. These 12 units may include a Unit 3 & 4 acceleration subject, according to availability.

It is expected that Year 12 students will undertake 10 Units of Study, of which a Unit 3 & 4 sequence from the English group is compulsory. Should a student have already completed a Unit 3 & 4 acceleration subject, they are expected to complete a minimum of eight additional Units of Study in their final year of school. (Under extenuating circumstances, for example ongoing illness, it may be possible for the VCE Learning Coordinator and Deputy Principal to grant permission to a student to study less than the recommended Units of Study in Year 12. This will remain at the discretion of the College and will always be considered in accordance for the best possible outcomes for the student).

For each student, completion of the VCE means satisfactorily completing the following:

- A minimum of 16 Units, including at least 3 from the English group (including a sequence of Unit 3/4)
- at least 3 additional sequences of Unit 3–4 studies, which can include further sequences from the English group. This may also include VCAA approved VCE VET subjects.

These are the minimum requirements as outlined by the VCAA. The College expectations of 10-12 Unit 3 &4 units allow students greater flexibility in their VCE program and enhanced pathways possibilities.

In order to calculate a student's ATAR, satisfactory completion of Units 3 & 4 of an English sequence is required. Each study is conducted according to the VCAA Study Designs, details of which will be given to the students by their teachers at the start of each unit of work. Current Study Designs are also available on the VCAA website.

The program chosen by each student will reflect the career and / or tertiary aspirations of that student.

Summary of Subject Selection Guidelines

Students at Northside Christian College are advised to complete the following:

- Year 11 students select six subjects to gain 12 units at Unit 1 & 2
- Year 12 students select five subjects to gain 10 units at Unit 3 & 4

Tertiary prerequisites are available in the Victorian Tertiary Admissions Centre (VTAC) publications, which are available online at http://www.vtac.edu.au/publications/#year12. They are also available from individual tertiary institutions. The VTAC advises that satisfactory completion of a scored Unit 3–4 sequence from the English group of studies is required for the calculation of a student's Australian Tertiary Admission Rank (ATAR).

4.1 VCE - Vocational Major

The VCE – Vocational Major is a two-year vocational and applied learning program created within the Victorian Certificate of Education (VCE) aimed at Year 11 & 12 students. This certificate offers a program that enables successful transitions into apprenticeships, traineeships, further education and training, or directly into employment. Within senior secondary education, vocational and applied learning builds critical and creative thinking, communication skills, teamwork and collaboration, curiosity and innovation. It provides students with real-world knowledge about the workplace, and practical and transferrable skills.

The VCE Vocational Major (VCE VM) supports students to develop both academic and practical skills. It employs a more diverse range of assessment strategies rather than exams, alleviating some of the pressure that students face when considering the VCE, whilst still enabling students to successfully gain a VCE satisfactory completion.

Students must complete a minimum of 16 units to meet the requirements for a VCE certificate with a VCE Vocational Major appellation which include:

Year 11

- Unit 1 & 2: Literacy or Unit 1 & 2 VCE English (i.e. Unit 1 & 2 English)
- Unit 1 & 2: Numeracy or VCE Mathematics (i.e. Unit 1 & 2 Foundation or General Mathematics)
- Unit 1 & 2: Work Related Skills
- Unit 1 & 2: Personal Development Skills
- VET Certificate II or above (Minimum of 90 hours of completed units)
- Unit 1 & 2: Elective (selected by students, if desired)
- Students may choose to undertake Structured Workplace Learning (SWL) or a School-Based Apprenticeship or Traineeship (SBAT)

Year 12

- Unit 3 & 4: Literacy or Unit 3 & 4 VCE English (i.e. Unit 3 & 4 English)
- Unit 3 & 4: Numeracy or VCE Mathematics units (i.e. Unit 3&4 Foundation Mathematics)
- Unit 3 & 4: Work Related Skills
- Unit 3 & 4: Personal Development Skills
- VET Certificate II or above
- Unit 3 & 4: Elective (selected by students, if desired)
- Students may undertake Structured Workplace Learning (SWL) or a School-Based Apprenticeship or Traineeship (SBAT)

Students aiming to complete the VCE VM will need to indicate this on their subject selection form and meet with the Director of Senior School Learning to discuss VET studies and pathway planning.

Students achieve the VCE and also meet the requirements for the VCE VM when they complete the following:

Students must successfully finish at least 16 units over two years, including:

- Three Literacy or VCE English units (including a Unit 3 & 4 sequence)
- Three other Unit 3 & 4 sequences in total including:
 - Two Numeracy or VCE Mathematics units
 - Two Work Related Skills units
 - Two Personal Development Skills units

180 nominal hours of VET at Certificate II level or above

Most students will undertake between 16-20 units over the two years

Please note: If selected carefully, students may also complete a **scored** VCE program as well as the VM requirements beginning in 2025. The two pathways will be fully integrated at that time.

4.2 Changes in Course Selection

There may come a time when a student wishes to reassess their chosen VCE subjects and the direction they are heading. Students are reminded of the importance of clarifying whether there are pre-requisites for their intended career and further study pathway. Universities and TAFE Colleges have published the list of Units 1 & 2 and Units 3 & 4 pre-requisites for all tertiary courses. Students should ensure that these pre-requisite studies are included in their program at the appropriate level. For further information, please refer to the relevant VTAC Prerequisites document located on the VTAC website. A copy is also available in the Senior School Office.

Any course selection changes need to be reviewed in light of a student's chosen career and tertiary study pathways. Students are encouraged to carefully select their subjects initially so as to minimise any potential interruptions due to change. Students should review all relevant information before pursuing a course change. Nevertheless, students should not feel that their VCE choices are set in concrete. It is, however, important to understand that any decisions that require a change in subject choices should not be made lightly or in haste. Any potential changes to study selection must be discussed fully with parents, teachers and the VCE Learning Coordinator. The timing of these decisions is also important. Changes are best made prior to any classes taking place in the subject, ensuring that the student has not missed any subject content.

Changes can only be made **subject to the constraints of the timetable** and should occur within one week of the beginning of each semester. A 'Change of Unit Request Form' is available at the VCE Administration Office or in the VCE Student Policy Handbook.

In the case of a carefully made decision to change after classes have commenced, the earlier a change of unit is requested, the better, as it makes it more feasible to catch up on work that has already been missed in the new subject. There are final dates each semester, after which a change is not permitted. Final dates are available on the Change of Unit Request Form. Under most circumstances, students will not be permitted to change a Unit 3 & 4 sequence after one week from the beginning of the year. Please note that Unit 1 and 3 classes commence in Term 4 each year during Early Start.

A Change of Unit Request Form (Appendix E) must be completed and signed before a change may occur. This generally involves changing from one study to another, although in extenuating circumstances, such as illness, it may be possible for a student to withdraw from one subject altogether. Again, such changes require consultation between their parents, student and the VCE Learning Coordinator before a decision is made. The decision will be made in accordance with the best possible outcomes for the student.

After extensive discussion, if any student wishes to discontinue their enrolment from VCE altogether, they must complete the College's official exit form, authorising the VASS administrator to withdraw the student from the VCE.

Students may also change from scoring VCE to non-scoring VCE at any time or change to the VCE Major after the conclusion of the current semester. A conversation with both parents and students will be undertaken with the VCE Coordinator to outline career pathways and discuss the implications of a non-scoring pathway through VCE. (See Appendix P for the form)

There are no restrictions on students repeating units, but they may only obtain credit once for each unit. Students who repeat a unit are required to repeat the full unit, including all coursework, and assessment tasks for the outcomes specified in the current study design for that particular unit in the year of repetition. Students wishing to receive a study score when repeating VCE units will need to satisfactorily complete both Unit 3 and Unit 4 sequence in the year of repetition. The only exception to this is a VCAA provision granted for students who have ongoing special medical needs.

4.3 VCE Attendance Policy

The VCAA places the onus on the determination of 'satisfactory attendance' with individual schools. Northside Christian College's requirements in relation to VCE attendance are explained in this section.

The VCAA advises that all VCE and VM units involve at least 50 hours of scheduled classroom instruction. A student needs to attend sufficient class time to complete work. If a student has completed work but there has been a substantial breach of the school's attendance policy, the school is unable to authenticate the student's work. Where the school must assign an N for the outcome which cannot be authenticated, the school must also assign an N result for the entire unit.

Students are expected to be punctual and attend all time-tabled classes, excursions, College and Year Level Assemblies and Chapel services. The College policy is a minimum required class attendance of 90% (unless acceptable explanations are provided) for each unit of study during a semester. All subject teachers will mark a class roll during each lesson.

Attendance of VCE classes is extremely important. Absence for a class means missing key subject content and information and valuable contact time with the teacher. If students are absent from class during a SAC they risk the non-achievement of a score for that particular task. It is for these reasons that the College has specific requirements when it comes to providing evidence for the reasons a student is absent.

If a student's absence is known in advance:

- There are some circumstances where a student may know in advance that they will be
 absent on a particular day. Please note that the only acceptable reasons for these types
 of absences are in the case of serious events for which there can be no possibility of
 scheduling outside of College hours. For example, a medical procedure or attendance at
 a funeral.
- It is important to note that driving lessons / tests, part-time work and family holidays are
 not acceptable reasons for an absence and will be recorded as an unexcused absence,
 as these are events that are possible to be scheduled outside of College hours. If a parent
 or guardian believes there may be extenuating circumstances surrounding the need for a
 student to be absent from classes, they should contact the VCE Learning Coordinator and
 discuss the appropriate course of action.
- In the event of an acceptable reason for a student to be absent, the VCE Learning Coordinator should be notified in writing as soon as is practical. Substantiation in the form of a medical certificate / letter, or funeral notice will need to be provided within three (3) days of returning to school.
- Where a student will be, or proposes to be, absent from school for an acceptable reason during the assessment of an outcome (SAC), an 'Alternative SAC Request Form' (Appendix D must be completed and submitted to the VCE Learning Coordinator at least one week prior to the scheduled date.)

Other absences:

• The College is to be informed of the student's absence by 9:00am on the day of absence by a parent / guardian, as per the Attendance and Roll Marking Policy (Policy No. 33). Parents wishing to report Student Absentee to Reception, please email attendance@ncc.vic.edu.au before 9am. The College Administration will notify all relevant teaching staff, including the VCE Learning Coordinator of the student's absence. Students will be aware if an assessment has been schedule on the day of the absence. In this case, the student or parent of the student should also notify the subject teacher by email in advance of the class to alert them to the absence due to illness.

- If a student is absent due to a medical condition that involves a visit to a doctor or hospital, a medical certificate must be provided. As a general recommendation, we would advise that medical certificates are routinely sought in any situation where a student attends a doctor that results, or may result, in any time away from school. If the medical condition does not involve a visit to the doctor or hospital, a note from a parent or guardian explaining reasons for the absence must be provided. If you wish to further discuss the need for a medical certificate, please contact the VCE Learning Coordinator. Accurate documentation regarding absences is vital and can be of benefit to students when matters of Special Provision are being decided.
- If a student is absent due to ill health or another medical condition during the assessment of an outcome, a doctor's certificate must be provided upon the student's return to school and lodged at the Senior School office for the records of the VCE Learning Coordinator. This student will need to request the opportunity to sit an alternative SAC Task using the 'Alternative SAC Request Form' (Appendix D).
- If a student is absent for reasons other than a medical condition, a note signed by a parent or guardian or another authority of relevance to the absence must be provided. It is important to note that these absences may or may not be considered acceptable, at discretion of the VCE Learning Coordinator and Deputy Principal.

Other information regarding attendance:

- All signed notes and medical certificates must be lodged at the Senior School office for the records of the VCE Learning Coordinator.
- Students need to attend sufficient class time to complete any course work and activities completed in class. Classroom work is necessary for authentication.
- Where students have completed work but there is a substantive breach of class attendance, the student may be awarded an 'N' (not satisfactory) at the discretion of the VCE Learning Coordinator as the school is unable to authenticate the students work.
- If a student is absent during a SAC for any reason, an 'Alternative SAC Request Form'
 must be completed and submitted to the VCE Learning Coordinator, who shall discuss the
 reasons for the request with the subject teacher. Each request for alternative SAC
 arrangements will be considered on its merits and approval of the request will be at the
 discretion of the VCE Learning Coordinator, in consultation with the subject teacher.
- If there has been no prior notification of the reason for the student's absence during a SAC (either leading up to, or on the day) from the student, or parents / guardians of the student, then that student can be considered to have not demonstrated the outcomes concerned and should therefore be considered as needing to complete a redemption task (see section 5.14). Any mark/score for that particular SAC will be a zero. If appropriate notification has been given (for example, notification from parent followed by medical certificate etc.) with subsequent approval from the VCE Learning Coordinator, then arrangements must be made for an alternate SAC to be completed as soon as practical.
- Attendance data will be gathered throughout the term by each subject teacher. When student attendance drops below 90%, parents/guardians will be contacted for an explanation. If attendance hours continue to fall, further action may need to be taken by the VCE Learning Coordinator.
- Students with attendance below 90% will be required to make up the time lost from individual classes. Subject teachers will set tasks for students to complete during the Attendance Redemption time. All time redeemed must be spent working on tasks. Time spent on the phone or socialising will not count toward attendance redemption. (See form in Appendix G)
- The VCE Learning Coordinator will file all notifications of student absences.

• It is the responsibility of any student who is absent to find out what work was covered during his or her absence and what work may have been set during that time. The excuse, "I didn't know because I was away", is unacceptable.

Please also refer to the College's Attendance and Roll Marking Policy (Policy No. 33).

4.4 VCE Acceleration Program

Students at Year 10 will be given the opportunity to undertake a Unit 1 & 2 sequence as part of an acceleration program. In Year 11, they then have the opportunity to continue in the Unit 3 & 4 sequence of the same subject. Specific subjects will be made available for acceleration and Year 10 students wishing to participate are required to apply using the appropriate Acceleration Application Form (Appendix F). Selection is dependent on the following criteria:

- Previous high achievement in related subject areas.
- Demonstration of a positive attitude and diligent approach to studies.
- Attendance at a selection interview with the VCE Learning Coordinator and subject teacher.
- Agreement and subsequent signature of parents/guardians on the application form.
- · Availability of places in the subject.
- Favourable blocking of subjects in the timetable.

Please note that Year 11 students will be given preference in the event of limited enrolment places, and blocking considerations.

4.5 Administrative Matters and Student Privacy

- Students are asked to complete a Student Personal Details Form each year they are enrolled in the VCE. This enrolment information is stored on VASS. Students will be required to check the accuracy of the information at the beginning of the year. They will also sign a declaration saying that they will abide by VCAA rules and regulations regarding the VCE. (See Appendix A.)
 - Students will have the process and required information explained to them and assistance will be provided if necessary.
 - This information is maintained in VASS, the VCAA central database, and any hardcopies of the student's details are kept in a secure location on the College premises.
- A student who does not identify as male or female may elect to have 'self-described' as their nominated gender identity on the Student Personal Details Form. The self-described gender category refers to any person who does not identify as either exclusively male or female, including people of non-binary gender.
 - The VCAA have advised schools that have students who are in the process of gender affirmation/transition that they should contact the Student Records and Results Unit for further advice in relation to recording student details on VASS and the reporting of their results.
 - From 1 May 2020, a student who has legally changed the sex that is recorded on their birth certificate (through the Births, Deaths and Marriages registry process) may present the amended birth certificate to their school (if under 18 years of age and currently in school) or to the VCAA (if over 18 and no longer in school) so that their record can be updated.
- The College must seek permission from students for their data to be forwarded to newspapers and other government bodies for the calculation of awards and prizes and for

- the Department of Education and Training (DET) On Track survey. This must be done for each academic year of enrolment.
- The VCAA is a Victorian public sector agency and required to comply with the Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 (Vic).

Under the Privacy and Data Protection Act students have the right to request access to personal information held about them by the VCAA. Individuals seeking access to personal information held about them by the VCAA should email the VCAA Privacy Officer: vcaa.privacy@edumail.vic.gov.au. In some circumstances, an application under the Freedom of Information Act 1982 (Vic) may be necessary.

4.6 Students Seeking EAL Status

The satisfactory completion of at least three units from the English group, including a Unit 3–4 sequence, is a compulsory requirement for achieving the VCE. Students who are unfamiliar with the English language because they are from non-English-speaking backgrounds or who are deaf or hard of hearing may have access to English as an Additional Language (EAL) status. Students applying for EAL status should indicate this on their VCE Student Personal Details form. Identifying a student as having EAL status does not automatically enrol the student in EAL.

To apply for EAL status, each student is required to submit an 'Application for Enrolment in English as an Additional Language Units 3 and 4' form to the school. This is designed to assist schools in evaluating a student's EAL status. Schools are advised the VCAA to not enrol a student in EAL unless they have received all documentation verifying that the student meets the EAL eligibility criteria. Students are encouraged to work closely with the Director of Senior School Learning to commence the process to determine EAL eligibility prior to commencing their VCE program to allow time to collect and assess the supporting documentation.

Students who are applying to seek EAL status must meet one of the three criteria outlined below.

Criteria no.	Criteria for EAL status	
1	 A student: will not have resided in Australia or another predominantly English-speaking country for a total period of more than seven years prior to 1 January in the year the student will be undertaking Units 3 and 4 EAL* and has been enrolled in schools where English has been the student's major language of 	
	instruction for a total period of seven years or less over the period of their education^	
2	A student is an Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander person whose first language is not English	
3	A student is deaf or hard of hearing and meets the eligibility requirements	

^{*} The period of seven years is to be calculated cumulatively over the student's whole life. The calculation of time spent in Australia is made from the date of last arrival plus any previous periods of time spent in Australia or any predominantly English-speaking country. Time spent out of Australia during school holidays should be included in the accumulation towards the seven years because there would have been no disruption to education during these periods.

Special circumstances for EAL status

There are special circumstances that may be considered by the VCAA in determining a student's eligibility for EAL status, including:

[^] Schools must sight the student's overseas school reports to confirm that the language of instruction was not English during this period.

- Minimal or no primary school education
- Material interruptions to schooling during primary years, particularly if there were changes to the language of instruction
- Material interruptions to schooling after arrival in Australia.

Circumstances not considered for EAL status

The following are not grounds for a special application for EAL status:

- The language spoken in the student's home.
- The standard of the student's spoken and written English.
- The failure of the student's school to provide EAL assistance to the student.

Determinations about EAL status

If a student clearly meets the criteria, the Principal has the authority to grant this provision. Such applications should not be sent to the VCAA; they should be retained on the school file. Students are advised that the VCAA may request copies of applications to confirm eligibility as part of an audit process.

If a decision is not clear, the Principal may apply to the VCAA for a determination using the **Application for Enrolment in English as an Additional Language Units 3 & 4** form. If a determination is sought from the VCAA, the completed application form, together with all supporting documentation, should be forwarded to the Student Records and Results Unit as soon as possible (which should be **in the year prior** to undertaking Units 3 & 4 English as an Additional Language).

Students who have resided and studied in Singapore or India

VASS disables EAL approval for students whose country of origin is Singapore or India, even though the student may have resided in Australia for less than seven years. A message on VASS will appear, stating 'EAL eligibility for this country of origin can only be approved by the VCAA'. The school must forward the application to the VCAA for a thorough assessment. These applications need to include supporting school documentation and passport stamp and/or international movement records, to determine whether the student is eligible for EAL status. If the application is reviewed by the VCAA, and the approval granted, it will be entered on VASS and the school will be able to enrol the student in English as an Additional Language. This application and supporting documentation should be forwarded to the Student Records and Results Unit as soon as possible (which should be in the year prior to undertaking Units 3 and 4 English as an Additional Language).

Students who are deaf or hard of hearing

Students seeking EAL status on the grounds of being deaf or hard of hearing must:

- produce evidence of a hearing test administered by the Australian Government Hearing Services Program, or an equivalent body, not more than two calendar years before the year of enrolment in a Unit 3–4 sequence. The audiogram and accompanying report submitted must show that the student has a hearing loss of 60 decibels or greater in their better ear. Other aspects of hearing loss, such as issues relating to sound frequencies, should be noted in the report. The report should be written in an accessible language, with the implications of the audiogram results clearly explained
- have been ascertained by the Visiting Teacher Service as being eligible for assistance on the basis of being deaf or hard of hearing, or be enrolled in a school for the deaf or hard of hearing or a recognised unit or facility for the deaf or hard of hearing attached to a regular school.

Schools can make decisions about the eligibility of a deaf or hard of hearing student for EAL status on the basis of these criteria. If necessary, advice may be sought from the Student Records and Results Unit.

If the principal has approved the student's application, their status can be entered on VASS. If the principal is uncertain about a student's eligibility, they should apply to the VCAA using the Application for Enrolment in English as an Additional Language Units 3 & 4 form. All evidence as described in the eligibility criteria must be supplied with the application.

To satisfy the requirements of English or English as an Additional Language, students who are deaf or hard of hearing may undertake an alternative assessment task to the one specified in the English or English as an Additional Language study design. For those students who are deaf or hard of hearing and who have a limited capacity for oral communication, an alternative may be a data presentation (for example, using Microsoft PowerPoint) or a presentation using Auslan. which is translated into speech by an interpreter.

5.0 Assessment in the VCE (including VCE VM)

Please note, VCAA is the governing body of the VCE and VCE VM, and will be referred to many times in this section. To be awarded the VCE or VCE VM, a student must satisfactorily complete:

- At least 16 Units, including 3 units from the English group, including a Unit 3-4 sequence.
- At least additional three sequences of Unit 3-4 studies, which can include further sequences from the English group.

The VCE and VM may include a number of units of Vocational Education and Training (VET).

Decisions about satisfactory completion of a unit are solely the responsibility of the school. Results for each unit must be based on a judgment of satisfactory or non-satisfactory achievement of outcomes.

VCE Assessment Principles

The College acknowledges and implements the 'VCE Assessment Principles' developed by the VCAA. The VCE Assessment Principles' highlights that the system for assessing the progress and achievement of students must be accessible, effective, equitable, reasonable and transparent. Further information is emphasised to staff in the VCE Staff Policy Handbook (Policy No. 3) and the Examinations and VCE School Based Assessment Procedures document (Policy No. 6).

ATAR

In order for a student to be awarded an ATAR students must satisfactorily complete:

- Unit 3 & 4 of English (any).
- 3 or more additional scored sequences of Units 3 & 4.
- A study score must be obtained in a minimum of four scored Unit 3 & 4 subjects.

Satisfactory completion requires that a student satisfy the necessary learning outcomes as stated in each Unit of Study, including previously outlined attendance requirements.

There are several restrictions on study combinations that will affect the calculation of the ATAR.

For more information about these restrictions, please refer to the VTAC fact sheet: http://www.vtac.edu.au/files/pdf/publications/fact sheets/Study area groupings fact sheet.pdf

5.1 Learning Outcomes

For each VCE Unit of Study there are prescribed Learning Outcomes which must be satisfactorily demonstrated by students to achieve an 'S' for that unit, thus indicating satisfactory completion.

Each outcome will involve students demonstrating key knowledge and key skills, as outlined in the subject Study Design. The demonstration of which is through a variety of tasks appropriate for that particular subject. The Study Design sometimes stipulates these tasks, although the subject teacher more commonly determines the tasks. Teachers will give students details of these tasks at the beginning of each unit.

5.2 Satisfactory Completion of Learning Outcomes

To obtain an 'S' for a unit, students must satisfactorily complete all Learning Outcomes for that unit. The subject teacher will determine satisfactory completion of each unit. This is done using information given in the Study Design and accompanying Assessment Guides.

Required outcomes for a VCE study cannot be modified. Students must be assessed according to the criteria given in the appropriate Study Design. The methods in which some outcomes are assessed may be modified in special circumstances, such as illness or injury. Such modifications will be at the discretion of the VCE Learning Coordinator after consultation with subject teachers, the student concerned and parents/guardians. Please refer to Section 7.0 Special Provision for further information.

The student will receive an N (not satisfactory) for the unit when one or more of the following occurs:

- The work does not demonstrate achievement of the outcomes.
- The student has failed to meet a school deadline for the assessment task, including if an extension of time has been granted for any reason, including Special Provision.
- The work cannot be authenticated, for example through lack of attendance.
- There has been a substantial breach of rules.

If a student is no longer attending a unit but they have not officially withdrawn by signing a Student Exit form, the symbol J will be included on VASS.

The J result can only be used if the student:

- Is no longer attending class.
- Has not submitted work for assessment.

5.3 Unit 1 and 2 Assessments

Assessment tasks are specific activities that are used to determine whether a student has demonstrated key knowledge and key skills for a learning outcome. These tasks are referred to as School Assessment Coursework (SACs or SATs).

The College will assess the standard of completion or demonstration by providing a rubric for the task. The assessment task result will contribute to the final result given for the Unit of Study and will appear on the End of Semester Reports. Results for Unit 1 & 2 subjects are an internal measure of the standard of completion by a student, and are not moderated against other students from other schools.

5.4 Reporting

Continuous Online Reporting Program (CORP)

Northside Christian College provides all parents and guardians with online access to their child's assessment feedback and results via the 'Continuous Online Reporting Program' (CORP), which is an online resource. CORP increases awareness of individual learning needs, provides quality and timely information to parents and guardians, and improves classroom and administrative efficiency.

Students at Northside Christian College receive feedback through discussing strengths and areas for improvement. Continuous online reporting also makes feedback available to parents in a secure online environment. Parents can view results for assessments without waiting until the

end of the semester. The online assessment information is not designed to replace semester reports, but rather to complement.

Secondary School End of Semester Reports

Secondary School reports indicate whether a student has satisfactorily or not satisfactorily completed VCE Units and provide an overall snapshot of student achievement on assessed tasks during the semester. Reports are provided to parents and quardians at the end of Semester 1 and Semester 2.

As a further reminder, please note that Unit 3 & 4 School-based results are subject to moderation by the VCAA in the calculation of the study score.

5.5 Unit 3 and 4 School Assessed Coursework (SACs)

SACs allow the teacher to rate an individual student's performance in relation to other members of the class. Each SAC represents a component of the total school-based mark for that study. These results are given to VCAA who use them in the calculation of the Study Score for the subject.

- All SACs must be clearly the student's own and must be completed on time, to the standards required in the relevant Study Design and as outlined by staff at Northside Christian College. Students must ensure that any SAC work (planning or final work) is submitted directly to the subject teacher.
- SACs are primarily designed to be completed during class time, which means that students must come to class fully prepared with the appropriate materials, texts, notes etc. SACs will be retained between classes by the subject teacher if a task extends beyond one classroom session.
- VCE teachers, in consultation with the VCE Learning Coordinator, will organise the spread of assessments throughout the year in order to ensure a consistency of workload. This will lead to the development of a SAC calendar. Each teacher will be responsible for issuing planned SAC assessment dates at the beginning of each unit. These planned dates will be confirmed closer to the date of each individual SAC. Dates for SACs will be set so that there is sufficient time to mark the work, have it cross-marked where necessary, and then have the results sent to VCAA by the specified dates.
- After SACs are submitted for assessment, teachers will provide feedback to students, including a numerical score where appropriate, advice to students on particular problem areas and advice on where and how improvements can be made for further learning. Students should carefully read feedback and follow advice as indicated. (It is important to note that the initial teacher assessment grade is subject to statistical moderation by the VCAA.)
- Teachers will determine the manner in which SAC tasks should be administered in their classes, whilst following guidelines specified in Section 5.9 Academic Integrity and Plagiarism. If a task is to be completed over more than one day, then the teacher will make it very clear what work (if any) may be done out of class time.

5.6 Unit 3 and 4 School Assessed Tasks (SATs)

SATs are usually much larger work projects than SACs, requiring a greater period of time to complete.

Students will be provided with full details of the task, including topics, word limits and marking criteria at the beginning of the unit.

Drafts of SATs must be retained and submitted to the teacher with the final work. Written comments by teachers are to be made on only one draft of any task. The teacher will keep additional notes on student progress on the Authentication Record for School-assessed Tasks. The teacher must see plans and ongoing progress at regular intervals. Both the draft and final SAT may be required for an Authentication Review by the VCAA.

Art Making and Exhibiting, Media, and Visual Communication Design are examples of subjects that include SATs for assessment.

Additional procedures and policies for staff are outlined in the VCE Staff Policy Handbook (Policy No. 3) and the College Examination and VCE School Based Assessments Procedures document (Policy No. 6).

Please also note that teachers are required to complete the study specific Authentication Record for School-assessed Tasks as outlined by VCAA in the 2023 VCE and VCE VM Administrative Handbook for the year of assessment.

5.7 Authentication of SACs and SATs

Students must be clearly informed of the subject timelines, assessment dates and the conditions under which assessment tasks are to be conducted, including whether any resources are permitted. In general, students will not be informed of specific questions or prompts prior to the SAC task. Undue assistance should not be provided to students while undertaking assessment tasks.

As some SACs may be completed outside the classroom, students will need to be able to authenticate the work as their own. In order to attest that the work is genuinely that of the student, students may be required to:

- Provide evidence of the development of the work.
- Discuss the content of the work with the teacher and answer questions to demonstrate their knowledge and understanding of the work.
- Provide samples of other work.
- Complete, under supervision, a supplementary assessment task related to the original task.
- Attend an interview or complete a test to demonstrate his or her understanding of the work.

The onus is on the student to provide evidence that the work submitted is their own and was completed in accordance with the VCAA's requirements. However, there will be instances where the authenticity of student work needs to be checked. In particular, teachers must satisfy themselves about the authenticity of any student work that:

- Is not typical of other work produced by the student.
- Is inconsistent with the teacher's knowledge of the student's ability.
- Contains unacknowledged material.
- Has not been sighted and monitored by the teacher during its development.

The evidence required to substantiate a breach of authentication should include as much of the following as is necessary and sufficient:

- A record of student attendance.
- The teacher's Authentication Record.
- A record of the teacher(s) judgment about the authenticity of particular work.
- Work of other student(s) which is similar or identical to that presented by the student in question.
- Samples of other work of the student to provide a comparison of work which the school has been able to authenticate with that which it is unable to authenticate.
- A copy of relevant source material from which unacknowledged work was obtained.
- A record of the outcome of any interview, discussion, supplementary assessment task or written test where the student has been asked to demonstrate his or her understanding of the work.
- Any admission from the student that work submitted was not his or her own.

Authentication Records for School-assessed Tasks for Art Making and Exhibiting, Media, Visual Communication and Design, are accessible from the relevant VCE study pages.

If the College is not satisfied that the work has been completed by the student and that there has been a substantial Breach of Authentication, then the Principal has the power to determine what action will be taken.

The Principal has the authority to:

- 1. Reprimand the student.
- 2. Give the student the opportunity to resubmit work if this can occur within the dates designated by the VCAA.
- 3. Refuse to accept that part of the work which infringes the rules.
- 4. Refuse to accept any part of the work if the infringement is judged by the Principal to merit such action.

Pursuant to the College's Academic Integrity and Plagiarism Policy (Policy No. 5), the above consequences may be imposed singularly or in combination.

5.8 Authentication Process

Authentication issues are mainly related to any work that is completed outside the classroom. Students must ensure that all unacknowledged work submitted by them is their own. They must acknowledge all resources used – including text and source material and the name(s) and status of the person(s) who provided the assistance, as well as the type of assistance received.

Students must not accept undue assistance from any person. Undue assistance would include using or copying another person's work or resources without acknowledgement, providing actual adjustments or improvements for a student's work or dictating or directing a student to insert a particular text. Undue assistance may also include the use of artificial intelligence applications to generate answers to homework or assessment questions. (For example, using an AI application such as ChatGPT to generate answers to work that is then submitted as being authored by the student.)

The issue of copying and plagiarism and the consequences thereof are clearly spelled out by the VCAA and the College Academic Integrity and Plagiarism Policy (Policy No. 5), and may result in the award of an 'N' result.

5.9 Academic Integrity and Plagiarism

In addition to a reference list, all assessment tasks utilising research should move towards accurate and complete citations. Students are also required to sign a Statement of Authorship (See Appendix H).

VCAA set out clear guidelines regarding the submission of work. It is the responsibility of each student to follow these guidelines.

VCAA prescribe rules which students must observe when preparing work for assessment. These rules apply also to SACs and SATs.

- 1. A student must ensure that all unacknowledged work submitted for assessment is genuinely his/her own.
- 2. A student must acknowledge all resources used, including:
 - Text, websites and source material.
 - The name(s) and status of any person(s) who provided assistance and the type of assistance provided.
- 3. A student must not receive undue assistance from any other person in the preparation and submission of work.

Acceptable levels of assistance include:

- The incorporation of ideas of material derived from other sources (e.g. by reading, viewing or note taking) but which has been transformed by the student and used in a new context.
- Prompting and general advice from another person or source which leads to refinements and/or self- correction.

Unacceptable forms of assistance include:

- Use of, or copying of, another person's work or other resources without acknowledgement.
- Actual corrections or improvements made or dictated by another person.
- Use of artificial intelligence, such as Chat GPT, to generate work that is not their own.
- 4. A student must not submit the same piece of work for assessment in more than one study, or more than once within a study.
- 5. A student must not circulate or publish written work that is being submitted for assessment in a study, in the year of enrolment.
- 6. Students who knowingly assist other students in a Breach of Rules may be penalised.

For additional information, please also refer to the College's Academic Integrity and Plagiarism Policy (Policy No. 5).

5.10 Unit 3 and 4 Study Scores

A Study Score is a number out of 50 that provides an indication of how well the student has completed the subject compared with all other students who were enrolled in that subject in the VCE. It is calculated using the moderated SACs, SATs and Examination results. Moderation is required to account for any differences in assessment from school to school. The Unit Examination is the only assessment that is common to all VCE students across Victoria.

The Study Score is not a score out of 50, but a rank of the student compared to the rest of the enrolments for that particular subject. For subjects with enrolments larger than 1,000 students the following provides a guide as to the interpretation of a Study Score. For subjects with less than 1,000 students the percentages will change somewhat but the following table will provide some guidance.

Study Score	Approximate percentage of students on or above this ranking
45	2%
40	9%
35	26%
30	53%
25	78%
20	93%

5.11 Moderation of Unit 3 & 4 SAC Scores

As previously stated, students will be given feedback on their progress throughout the year in the form of numerical assessment on SACs. This will include suggestions for improvements to be made in future work. It is vital that students realise that the school-based marks they receive throughout the year will be subject to Statistical Moderation by the VCAA who will utilise a reference score for each student from their examination score(s) and, where justified, the GAT score to help in the moderation process. As a result, teachers will not be able to confirm SAC scores – this will be the task of the VCAA at the conclusion of the year, after the November Examinations have been marked.

5.12 The Australian Tertiary Admission Rank (ATAR)

The Australian Tertiary Admission Rank (ATAR) is a number from 0.00 to 99.95, which represents a student's rank in comparison with other students completing the VCE in that same year. It is calculated using a student's Unit 3 & 4 scaled results. In order for a student to be awarded an ATAR, they must satisfactorily complete:

- Unit 3 & 4 of from the English group (any)
- At least 3 other sequences of Units 3 & 4
- Obtain a Study Score in all of these units

The ATAR is calculated as follows:

- The student's English score; plus
- The scores of their next best three permissible studies; plus
- 10 per cent of the lowest top four score is used as the study score for any fifth and sixth study, if completed.
- This total is then statistically moderated and ranked with other students completing VCE.

The scaled Study Scores of Unit 3 & 4 subjects are used for the ATAR calculation purposes.

The calculation of an ATAR is separate to the satisfactory completion of the VCE.

For further information regarding scaling and the calculation of the ATAR, please refer to the publication "The ABC of Scaling" published by VTAC at the following website:

VTAC ATAR and Scaling Guide 2023

5.13 Appeals Against College Decisions

Regarding breaches of VCAA rules

Section 2.5.21 of the Education and Training Reform Act 2006 provides that a student may appeal to the VCAA against a decision by the College, and any penalty imposed by the College, in respect of a contravention of the assessment rules of the VCAA relating to School-based Assessments. This includes Authentication rule breaches. Please note that this does not apply to decisions about the satisfactory completion of a course arising from a student's attendance, or other disciplinary decisions not arising from breaching VCAA assessment rules.

If a student wishes to appeal against a College decision, they must appeal in writing to the Chief Executive Officer of the VCAA no later than 14 days after the student receives written notice of the decision from the College. The VCAA will nominate an officer of the VCAA to interview the parties to the appeal and attempt to resolve the matter.

Regarding breaches of Northside Christian College VCE rules

The Northside Christian College Grievance and Complaints Management Policy (Policy No. 14) makes provision for students to request a meeting of the Appeals Committee with regards to a decision made by the College regarding assessment, discipline, attendance, subjects, course requirements/outcomes or victimisation.

The Appeals Committee will consist of three members, it will always include the VCE Learning Coordinator and the relevant subject teacher, other members may include: the Principal or the Deputy Principal.

A student wishing to request the Appeals Committee to investigate a matter must make a written request to the VCE Learning Coordinator within 14 days of the grievance. The student lodging the appeal may have a support person present, but this person is not present to act on the student's behalf.

The student will be notified of the time and location of the Appeal in writing at least 24 hours before the meeting. Any decision made by the Appeals Committee will be conveyed to the student in writing within three working days of the Appeal meeting.

5.14 Redemption from an 'N' Result in a SAC

The term 'redemption' means that a student has an opportunity to complete a further assessment task in an area where their performance was previously unsatisfactory.

All students should be provided with all reasonable opportunities to demonstrate the achievement of learning outcomes. Where a student has not been able to demonstrate the achievement of a learning outcome the teacher should be able to provide the student with details of how the redemption can take place. These details should include:

- The learning outcomes which have not been achieved.
- The date of the redemption task.
- The method of redemption.

When a SAC is used to demonstrate achievement of learning outcomes and the teacher makes the judgement that a student has failed to demonstrate achievement of learning outcomes, then the student should be provided with redemption opportunities in order to gain a satisfactory pass for the unit. However, the original assessment will apply for scoring purposes. Students may not resubmit work to improve a score.

If a student receives an 'N' for any outcome in a Unit, and they do not take the opportunities presented to enable them to achieve an 'S', then that student will receive an 'N' for the Unit. This means that the Unit will not contribute to the student's VCE and may make them ineligible to be awarded the VCE at the end of Year 12. If a student no longer attends but has not officially withdrawn by signing a student exit form, or if they have not submitted any work for a subject, they will receive the result 'J'. This means that the Unit will not be recorded on their statement of results, but will be made available to VTAC and will be treated the same as an 'N' result.

5.15 Extension of Time for Assessment Tasks and Alternate SACs

In some cases the school may decide to allow the student extra time to complete work. Additional time may be given immediately after the specific class, at the end of the school day, or during free time during the day, or the student may take work home to complete. If an assessment task is undertaken outside the usual class time, the student must sign the appropriate VASS Authentication Record form, which will be provided by the school.

The College will ensure that the conditions for which an extension of time may be approved will be consistent for all VCE units within the school, and given in writing to students. An extension of time may extend from Semester 1 to Semester 2, but not into the next academic year. Extensions of time must not exceed the deadlines for the reporting of results to the VCAA.

When granting extra time to students for an assessment task held under test conditions, it is important to keep in mind whether an application for Special Examination Arrangements has been approved for a student requesting additional time for one or more of their VCE external assessments.

If a school plans to submit an application for Special Examination Arrangements requesting additional time for a student with a long-term condition, it is important for the school to initially trial this arrangement during classroom activities and assessments. Schools should contact the VCAA Special Provision team to discuss the student's history and the appropriateness of this type of provision before an application is submitted. This is generally considered during year 9 or 10 prior to commencement of VCE studies.

The following information is provided for approved circumstances only. An example of an approved absence would be a medical procedure or an illness (confirmed by a medical certificate), or attendance at a funeral (this should be confirmed by a funeral notice from a newspaper or similar supporting documentation). It is important to note that these absences are required to be confirmed with written documentation from a qualified third party. An unapproved absence would be as a result of a booking for driving test/lessons, a family holiday or other event that can be organised at another time. Music festivals and concerts are also considered an unapproved absence.

This procedure applies throughout the semester the unit is offered.

- Where a student, due to exceptional circumstances, is not able to complete an
 assessment or SAC/SAT task on the prescribed date, either because the student has
 been absent in the lead up period to the SAC task or the student cannot attend on the
 prescribed date, the student must apply for an extension or alternate SAC date, whichever
 is applicable, using the appropriate form.
- There is a formal process for students to follow in requesting an extension of time or an alternate SAC date. Students must provide evidence to support their request (e.g. Medical Certificate, funeral notice) and the form must be countersigned by a parent / quardian.
- Request forms are available from the VCE Learning Coordinator. The request will be determined by the Unit teacher after consultation with the VCE Learning Coordinator.
- Students should submit either request at least three days before the due date. On
 occasion this may not be possible. An application form needs to be completed and
 submitted to the class teacher (Appendix C).
- An approval for an extension of time or alternate SAC date will not be automatically approved.
- In the event of the request being approved, the alternate SAC should be completed as per arrangement with the subject teacher or Director of Senior School. Generally this is within three days of the return to school- particularly for Unit 3 & 4 subjects. If this is not possible, suitable arrangements will be made for supervised completion of the task as soon as possible. Likewise, any extension of time should not extend beyond 14 days of the original submission date.

• When considering requesting an extension or alternate SAC date you should also refer to Section 7.0 Special Provision.

5.16 Extension of Time for Learning Tasks

Learning or tasks that have been missed through illness or other serious cause may be rescheduled. If a student has been absent for prolonged periods through illness or other serious cause, they should not be overloaded on their return to school with the classroom learning they have missed and/or scheduled or rescheduled tasks. Careful consideration needs to be given to the management of the student's workload.

5.17 Unit 3 & 4 – General Achievement Test (GAT)

Students enrolled in one or more VCE or scored VCE VET Unit 3–4 sequence will be expected to sit Sections A and B of the GAT. Students enrolled in only VCE VM subjects will be expected to sit Section A only. If students are enrolled in the VCE VM as well as one or more VCE or VCE VET Unit 3–4 sequences, they will be expected to sit Sections A and B.

The 2023 GAT was held on Thursday 15th June. It is anticipated that the 2024 GAT will take place around a similar time.

5.18 Unit 3 & 4 External Examinations

The VCAA determines the timing of VCE external examinations. Students will be issued with their own copy of the VCE Exams Navigator – Student Information and Timetable, and will be guided through the information, rules and regulations contained in the document.

The VCAA publish the exam timetable at:

https://www.vcaa.vic.edu.au/Pages/vce/exams/timetable.aspx

5.19 Assistive Technology

Notwithstanding the approval of Special Provision, student use of computers and other assistive technology (e.g. iPads or tablets, audio recording devices) for SACs will only be permitted where the criteria and guidelines for that SAC allow for it and where the VCE Learning Coordinator judges it to be appropriate. Many SACs take place over a number of periods and to ensure authenticity of student work, students are often only allowed to work on their task during class time, as such certain security measures have been put into place. Students may be asked to use a 'guest account' on the College network, where their work is only accessible during class time. Students will not be permitted to work on these tasks at home; therefore, they will not be allowed to take any copies of their data out of the classroom. It is under the discretion of the Unit teacher to determine whether the submission of the work will be soft copy on the College's server in an appropriately named folder, or printed to hardcopy.

It should be noted that the VCAA policy does not accept computer malfunction as an acceptable excuse for late submission or non-submission of work.

A student who uses technology to produce work for assessment is responsible for ensuring that:

- There is an alternative system available for producing assessable work in case of malfunction or unavailability; and
- Hard copies of the work in progress and back up versions are produced regularly.

5.20 Storage and Sampling of Student Work and Assessment Documents

It is expected that students will retain teacher initialled and dated copies of all assessment tasks and school assessed coursework. The teacher will retain original assessment tasks and school assessed coursework. Such work may be requested by the VCAA as part of the process of course sampling. It is suggested that students develop a home-based filing system to store their work. This work can also be important for revision purposes and in preparation for examinations.

Only teacher initialled and dated originals will be accepted for sampling purposes.

5.21 Behavioural Expectations of Students During Assessment Tasks

VCE students at Northside Christian College are expected to behave in a manner which enables staff to teach and other students to learn without disruption and disturbance. This will be particularly emphasised during times when students are completing an assessment task. Teachers will give clear instructions about the nature of an assessment task as well as directions about the level of interaction permitted between teacher and student and between students.

Test Conditions for School Assessed Coursework (SAC) and School-Based Examinations

In adherence to VCE and VCAA Administrative Handbook, the following rules will apply when students undertake SACs and school-based examinations as part of their VCE. Any modifications will be noted and explained to students prior to commencing the assessment task. Where the word 'assessment' is used in this section, it generally refers to all SACs, SATs and external exams.

- 1. Students must not cheat or assist other students to cheat including taking any action that gives or attempts to give them or another student an unfair advantage in a VCE assessment.
- 2. Students must not allow, induce or assist any other person to present for a VCE external assessment in their place.
- 3. Students must not present for a VCE assessment in another student's place.
- 4. Students must not present for a VCE assessment under the influence of alcohol or drugs.
- 5. Students must obey and observe all proper instructions or directions given by their supervisor.
- 6. Students must provide reasonable assistance to any investigation by VCAA in relation to a suspected breach of the VCAA rules.
- 7. Students attending a VCE assessment may bring only materials and equipment approved for that assessment into the examination room.
- 8. Students must not possess mobile phones and electronic devices that are capable of storing, receiving or transmitting information or electronic signals, such as recorded music and video players, organisers, dictionaries and computerised watches, during a VCE assessment.
- 9. Students detected with any device defined in rule 8 must, upon the direction of a supervisor, surrender that device for inspection. Any confiscated device may be retained, pending any investigation into an alleged breach of VCAA rules. Students must provide reasonable assistance to VCAA or its agents to enable the interrogation of the device.
- 10. Students must not bring into or possess in the examination room any drinks or food except under special circumstances as approved and directed by the VCAA. Bottled water is permitted in the examination room under approved conditions.

- 11. Students must not communicate with any other student while the VCE assessment is being conducted.
- 12. Students must not cause any nuisance, annoyance or interference to any other student during a VCE assessment.
- 13. Students must not remove or tear out any part of a bound reference, question/task book, question and answer book or answer book, except where permitted, for example formula sheets.
- 14. Students must not remove any response material, used or unused, from the examination room.
- 15. Students must not begin to write or mark their paper or response material in any way, or use a calculator, until advised by a supervisor that writing may commence.
- 16. Students must raise their hand if they wish to communicate with a supervisor.
- 17. Students must not leave their place until permitted by a supervisor.
- 18. Students will not be permitted to leave the VCE external assessment before 30 minutes have elapsed from the start of writing time.
- 19. Students will not be permitted to leave in the last five minutes of the VCE external assessment.
- 20. Students must cease writing when instructed to do so by a supervisor.
- 21. Students must remain silent and seated in their place at the end of the VCE external assessment until response materials have been collected and checked, and an announcement is made permitting students to leave the examination room.
- 22. Students must not communicate with an assessor, before, during or after a VCE external assessment, except when communication is necessary for the conduct of the assessment.

VCAA examination rules shall apply with previously approved appropriate and reasonable modifications to students who have disabilities or other impairments.

All VCE teachers are required to report all alleged breaches of the above rules to the VCE Learning Coordinator. Teachers have the right to check any calculator or dictionary that is taken into an examination or SAC.

Any student unable or unwilling to abide by these stipulations will be excluded from the remainder of the task and may receive a mark of 'zero' for the task in that situation. Parents / Guardians will be notified in such instances.

Students are required to observe all rules for the conduct of VCE external assessments conducted by or on behalf of the VCAA, as well as the day-to-day rules of the institution providing the venue for the external assessment. The VCAA rules are published on the VCAA website. The rules for the conduct of VCE external assessments, are also published in the VCE Examinations Manual both and the GAT brochure and VCE Exams Navigator for distribution to students.

For more information, please refer to:

https://www.vcaa.vic.edu.au/assessment/vce-assessment/Pages/ExaminationRules.aspx

5.22 Out of Class Learning Activities

The student and the class teacher are responsible for ensuring that all necessary arrangements are made for an excursion undertaken as a part of the scheduled learning program. The general rule is that these activities should not interfere with the learning program of any class.

Unaccompanied research visits are expected to be conducted in the student's own time.

Excursions and activities during school holidays or after hours require the permission of the VCE Learning Coordinator. Permission must be sought in writing at least two weeks before the proposed activity.

Unsupervised activities, both at school and out of school, may be a part of a VCE Unit. Students involved in such activities will be expected to behave responsibly and reliably during these occasions. When visiting outside institutions it is important that students observe proper conduct that is in accordance with the Christian ethos of Northside Christian College and that they accept full responsibility for their actions.

5.23 Delivery of the VCE

The VCE and VCE VM can only be delivered by senior secondary providers registered with the Victorian Registration and Qualifications Authority (VRQA) and authorised by the Victorian Curriculum and Assessment Authority (VCAA) to deliver these qualifications. Families who home school cannot be accredited to deliver them.

Therefore, home-schooled students who wish to undertake the VCE or VCE VM need to cease registration as a home-schooled student with the VRQA and enrol with a registered senior secondary provider.

For additional information about home schooling and the VCE, please refer to the "Guide to Home Schooling in Victoria" published by the Early Childhood and School Education Group and the Department of Education and Training, Melbourne.

6.0 The Vocational Education and Training (VET) Pathway

It is possible to study a VET (Vocational Education and Training) course within a VCE program. VET courses provide students with learning and skill development designed to prepare individuals for work in the chosen industry or further study in this field. A VET course is the equivalent to an entry level TAFE Certificate which can lead to higher level qualifications with further TAFE study. Note that some certificates at Cert III may require further hours after Year 12 to complete the full qualification.

Students undertaking a VET course have the advantage of obtaining a nationally recognised qualification and at the same time receive credits toward their VCE program. Most of the VCE-approved VET certificates available may contribute to a student's ATAR either as a 10% contribution (5th or 6th study score) or as a fully scored subject. If the VET subject has an external exam and it may contribute in the top four study scores depending on the result. Nearly all VCE VET qualifications will provide credit in further education or training in a similar or same field of study.

When a student applies for a VET course, the VCE Learning Coordinator will assist with the enrolment process via the VET Portal. A students' place in a course is confirmed on the portal. It is vital that students return paperwork (application for enrolment, deposit and personal details forms) promptly to secure their place in VET for the following school year.

Be aware that enrolment in a preferred course is not guaranteed as places are limited and often fill very quickly.

Securing a place in VET is a multiple step process.

- 1. Fill in an application form for NMVC or another RTO for a particular course.
- 2. The VCE Learning Coordinator will lodge the application on the VET Portal.
- 3. Attend a compulsory enrolment / information night
- 4. Complete an enrolment form for the host school that is offering the VET Course.
- 5. When the course has been approved on the Portal, you will be sent an invoice for approximately \$200.00. When this payment is received your place in the course will be confirmed.

If you are absent, e.g. due to illness, the Senior School Office must be notified.

It is recognised that VET students are required to juggle their time between VET and VCE classes. Any VET students experiencing difficulties with their studies are encouraged to meet with the VCE Learning Coordinator to discuss additional support requirements.

Please also note that Appendix L relates to travel arrangements for students attending VET courses.

Northside Christian College recognises the value of VET training to future pathways. As a result, students who enrol in VET are only charged approximately 50% of the actual cost to the College. If a student fails to successfully complete the requirements of a VET course due to failure to attend classes or non-submission of work (not due to unexpected illness) the parents will be charged the full amount of the course.

7.0 Special Provision

Special Provision may be granted for students who, for particular reasons, are not able to fully meet the criteria for satisfactory completion of coursework assessments and examinations, or who experience difficulty through circumstances in demonstrating a satisfactory level for Learning Outcomes.

Students may be eligible for special provision if they are adversely affected in a significant way by:

- An acute or chronic illness (physical or psychological).
- Factors relating to personal circumstance.
- An impairment or disability, including a learning disorder.

These circumstances do not include matters or situations of the student's choosing, such as involvement in social or sporting activities or school events.

Prolonged absence from school or study is not in itself grounds for special provision. However, provisions are available to students experiencing severe hardship that may result in prolonged absence. In each case there are specific eligibility requirements that apply. There are four forms of Special Provision for VCE:

- 1. Curriculum Delivery and Student Programs.
- School-based Assessment.
- 3. Special Examination Arrangements.
- 4. Derived Examination Score.

All Special Provision considerations will go through the VCE Learning Coordinator or the Director of Inclusive Education. All requests will be processed in adherence with current Special Provision requirements stipulated by the VCAA. Information of various kinds will be requested from the parents/carers as required to facilitate a successful application. Please note the most current VCAA Special Provision information is available on the VCAA website.

Schools may approve special provision for both classroom learning and School-based Assessments to enable students with a disability, impairment or illness to demonstrate what they know and to participate in classroom learning. In some cases, alternative assessment strategies may be needed. The decision on whether to approve special provision for classroom learning or School-based Assessment is a school decision, and it must be evidence-based and made using a range of appropriate sources including professional testing and reports, educational assessments and teacher observations. The VCAA recognises that school personnel, because of their knowledge of individual students and their circumstances, can sensitively vary the school assessment programs to accommodate student circumstances.

Schools should consult the VCAA if they are unsure about evidence and/or appropriate arrangements, and for clarity and certainty about what provisions are appropriate. The VCAA recommends that schools approve arrangements for classroom learning and School-based Assessments that are consistent with the Special Examination Arrangements likely to be approved by the VCAA.

Early Engagement and Application

The VCAA strongly encourages schools to engage with the VCAA as early as possible to discuss any issues relating to managing students completing secondary level studies (Years 7–12) that may be eligible for or require special provision.

7.1 Curriculum Delivery and Student Programs

In cases where a student is significantly adversely affected by illness (physical or psychological), by any factors relating to personal environment, or disadvantaged by a disability or impairment, Special Provision can be granted in relation to the structure of the course being studied. This could involve a modification of the delivery of the program, permission for assistance from technology, or an aide.

In cases such as these, a VCE Support Group will be established to assist the student undertaking the VCE. The Support Group may consist of the student, teacher(s) or others deemed responsible for the student, and any learning support staff working with the student. Advice may also be sought from external agencies who are able to provide specialist consultants.

Please also refer to the College's Inclusive Education Policy (Policy No. 27).

7.2 School-Based Assessment

This is probably the most common form of Special Provision applied for within schools. In cases where a student's ability to demonstrate achievement is adversely affected by acute and chronic illness, long term impairment or personal circumstances, Special Provision may be granted for school-based assessment. Several strategies can be implemented in this situation, such as allowing extra time to complete a task, allowing the task to be completed at a later date, setting a substitute task, or even deriving a score for a task if it is not possible to complete a given task.

7.3 Special Examination Arrangements

Schools may apply to the VCAA for modified examination arrangements if it can be demonstrated that achievement on the examination is adversely affected by circumstances such as an accident, sudden illness, long-term illness or other personal circumstances. This could result in extra time allowances to complete an examination, granting of rest periods, permission to use assistive technologies, special examination papers (e.g. large print or braille), or an alternative examination venue (such as a hospital).

Application forms are available from the VCE Learning Coordinator, and must be completed and returned to the College at a date to enable submission to VCAA by their deadline. This date will be available at the beginning of 2024. Please note that the VCAA has strict provisions regarding special examination arrangements, including required evidence and documentation from qualified third parties and that any discussions regarding the need for such should be conducted as soon as possible in a student's secondary education.

7.4 Derived Examination Score

A derived examination score may be used if a student can demonstrate that an illness, personal trauma or other circumstances occurring immediately before or during an external examination has affected their attendance or performance in the examination. In defining 'immediately before', the situation must have arisen within the two-week period immediately prior to the examination.

7.5 Procedures for Applications

It is the responsibility of the student to formally notify the VCE Learning Coordinator of the details of the circumstances relating to the student's application for Special Provision.

- Students applying for Special Provision must do so on the appropriate form available from the VCE Learning Coordinator. These should be promptly completed according to the type of Special Provision being sought.
- Applications should include all relevant documents, medical reports, certificates etc.
 Confidentiality will be observed at all times.
- The student's Year 12 subject teachers may be invited to supply additional evidence for the application based on observation of the student in the classroom.
- The VCAA will assess each application and make a final decision.

Special Provision will not be granted for teacher absence and other teacher-related difficulties, or for circumstances deemed to be within the student's control (e.g. Concert on the weekend, part-time work, College responsibilities etc.).

For more information about Special Provision, please refer to: http://www.vcaa.vic.edu.au/Pages/vce/exams/specialprovision/specialprovision.aspx

8.0 Lost, Stolen or Damaged Work

In cases where work is genuinely lost, stolen or damaged, a written statement of circumstances must be presented to the VCE Learning Coordinator. Appropriate action will be taken after the case is considered. The written statement must:

- Be signed and dated by the student and parent/guardian.
- Include a brief explanation of what has happened to the work.
- Be accompanied by appropriate supporting documentation as required (e.g. earlier drafts, printouts, versions of the work which will act as proof of completion of the work for authentication purposes and for possible grade determination).
- Be given to the VCE Learning Coordinator for approval, in consultation with the subject teacher.

Schools must keep a record, but they are not required to report the loss, theft or damage to the VCAA. The principal, acting on advice from the teacher, and on the basis of records kept, shall determine the unit result for the student.

If a teacher or student has lost a School-assessed Task, or the task has been stolen or damaged, they must complete a written statement of the circumstances. The statement must be signed and dated. The school must complete the *Report on Lost, Stolen or Damaged School-assessed Tasks and Externally-assessed Tasks* form, enter an estimated score on VASS, and send the form by email to the VCAA. The Principal, acting on advice from the teacher and on the basis of records kept, will determine an initial assessment.

9.0 Homework / Online Lessons

Homework remains an essential part of the teaching and learning process. Students are expected to complete all homework / online tasks by the due date. Students and parents are advised that online lessons are completed in lieu of face-to-face class attendance and contribute towards VCE attendance at Northside Christian College. Homework tasks are commonly prelearning activities or flipped learning in preparation for the scheduled classes. Where specific homework may not be set, students are expected to engage in the revision of subject content. The Northside Christian College Homework Policy (Policy No. 46) suggests VCE students should be engaging in more than 2-3 hours of homework / study a night, which is the equivalent of 10–15 hours per week. Teachers are instructed to be mindful of this amount when setting homework, and students are requested to utilise that time in order to make the most of their learning opportunities.

Submission of set tasks within a VCE subject is used as one of the ways to authenticate individual student understanding of the key knowledge and key skills for the specific unit of study being assessed. As a result, if a student has not completed all set homework tasks leading up to an outcome, the mark for the outcome will remain an 'N' until all set work has been submitted. This is regardless of whether the student has achieved an 'S' on the specific 'SAC' itself.

10.0 VCE Private Study

Students will have access to Private Study sessions at school. Most subjects will set one 'online' lesson per fortnight that students will need to access during their non-class time. Teachers will set specific tasks to be completed during these lessons. Students are expected to manage their workload in their Private Study time in the Senior Study Room or Group Study Room to ensure that they complete all set tasks.

Students are not permitted to leave the specified private study area at any time during the study session for any reason without written permission of the staff member supervising that session. Under no circumstances should students be undertaking study on the College oval or any other area around the College grounds. Students may sign up to work in groups in the Group Study Room for a specific subject and must be engaged with that subject as a group for the time set.

Students who do not utilise private study time for its intended purpose, cause disturbances or are not present in their required location during private study periods will be subject to follow up action as per the Behaviour Management Policy (Policy No. 36).

Students are expected to keep up to date with any assigned online lessons / homework tasks. If students fall a week or more behind with their assigned work, they may be scheduled for an afterschool catch-up session or a catch-up day on a student free day. Students will require the supervising teacher to complete the Redemption of Time form (Appendix G) to document the work completed during this period of time.

10.1 Approved Home Study for Year 11 & 12

Students may be given permission to access Home Study times at the beginning or end of the school day depending on their subject placement in the current timetable. Students may not seek permission for home study during the middle of the day when they would need to come to school for morning scheduled classes, leave and then return for additional scheduled classes in the afternoon.

In addition, students who have a Period 1 scheduled class are required to be at Homegroup. Homegroup is never considered as a part of Home Study when a student has a Period 1 class. Additionally, Christian Life Studies classes and Chapel are a required periods and not considered for Home Study.

Students who wish to undertake Home Study should access the Year 11 & 12 Home Study Arrangements form (Appendix N) after the timetable for the semester has been fixed for the semester. The form needs to be completed as directed and submitted to the Director of Learning for Senior School for approval before starting Home Study.

Home Study is a privilege and not automatically granted. Student attendance at school, absences, tardiness to school, and overdue lessons are considered prior to granting permission for Home Study. This privilege may also be revoked at any time if the student falls behind in their work, is not attending school or is not achieving satisfactory outcomes for their VCE classes. At least two days from the submission of the form should be allowed for processing and during this time, students need to attend school from homegroup through dismissal at the end of the day.

11.0 Student Mentoring

Our VCE mentoring program forms an important part of our commitment to maximising the success our Year 11 & 12 students. All students in Years 11 & 12 are given the opportunity to request a mentor. Students who request a mentor will be assigned a teacher/staff member who will meet with them weekly or fortnightly in a mentoring capacity. The purpose of these mentoring meetings is to support VCE students as they set weekly, targeted goals for personal and academic success.

Mentors may also discuss other areas of student life such as careers and future pathways, but this is not their primary focus. All specific questions of this nature should be directed to the accredited Careers and Pathways Coordinator. Specific well-being concerns will be directed to the Student Wellbeing Officers for care and counselling.

12.0 Time Management

At times throughout the year VCE students have considerable pressures placed upon them. Effective use of time in class, during Private Study and Home Study, can assist students to retain a sense of control of their work and ensure that they are achieving all they are capable of. In response to this pressing concern, Northside Christian College has the following expectations of all students:

- Students are to attend all formal classes, Home Group sessions, assemblies and chapel services.
- Where Private Study sessions occur, VCE students are to be in the designated study area, unless other formal arrangements have been made with a teacher in consultation with the VCE Learning Coordinator.
- Students should arrive promptly to classes and Private Study sessions with all of their required workbooks and materials.

The College (and assigned mentors) will assist students in effective time management practices where they may require support. External providers, such as Elevate Education, are invited to the College to provide additional support in this specific area at various times throughout the VCE years. Students are also provided with a school diary to help with time management.

13.0 VCE Review Panel

Northside Christian College will convene a VCE Review Panel to make decisions on any relevant matters outlined in this handbook. The VCE Review Panel usually consists of three members, it will always include the VCE Learning Coordinator and the relevant subject teacher, other members may include; the student's parents, the Principal or the Deputy Principal. Any meetings of the VCE Review Panel must take minutes and a copy sent to the Principal and other relevant parties. If the Principal is not present at the meeting, they must be informed of any outcome. One of the major roles of the VCE Review Panel is to interview students (Year 10 – Year 12) who have fallen behind in their work or are not using Private Study and homework time effectively. Issues of authentication are also relevant to this Panel.

14.0 Distance Education

A number of students from the College have studied VCE subjects via the Virtual School Victoria (VSV), formerly known as the Distance Education Centre Victoria (DECV). Students are responsible for undertaking course counselling with the VCE Learning Coordinator prior to enrolling in a distance education course in order to consider all available options for the student, including Video Conference classes with other Christian schools and similar courses offered by the College.

To undertake VCE units of study by distance education, a student will need to have a history of being a motivated, independent learner and have no possible alternative to the subject wishing to be studied within the College's curriculum.

Northside Christian College will appoint a Supervising Teacher who is available to administrate and assist the student should any difficulties arise for a student enrolled in Distance Education. If a student falls more than three weeks behind in work, the VSV will contact the student and the College. Students must keep back-up copies of all work.

In 2023, students who enrol in the VSV courses were required to pay upfront costs of \$810 per subject (\$405 per Unit). It is anticipated that a similar fee will be required in 2024.

Please be advised that the College maintains a Distance Education Policy (Policy No. 8), which addresses payment and other procedures in further detail.

15.0 Student Use of Vehicles

A number of students gain their driver's licence during VCE and may wish to drive their car to school. The school recognises that the added mobility adds extra flexibility to students' travel arrangements. Northside Christian College has a policy that caters for this added mobility, whilst at the same time carefully considering the safety and welfare of other students when travelling to and from school.

- Any student driving to and from school must have permission, in writing, from parents / guardians and the Deputy Principal (Permission Forms are available from the Senior School Office). Approval will be granted once the permission forms are processed.
- Students with their driver's licence are not permitted to take passengers, including
 immediate family, in their car to or from school under any circumstances, unless specific
 permission has been received from the parents / guardians of the students who would be
 passengers. (Permission Forms for transport of Passengers are available from the Office).
 Students are expected to comply with the Victorian law on peer passenger restrictions.
- Any reckless driving within the vicinity of the College may result in the Police being
 notified. Students who bring their own car to school must park in designated car parks and
 will not be able to use their car during the day e.g. at recess, lunchtime or during Private
 Study sessions, unless special permission has been granted. Access to cars is out of
 bounds for all students during College hours.

For additional information, please refer to the Student Drivers Policy (Policy No. 34).

Please also note that Appendix L relates to travel arrangements for students attending VET courses.

15.1 Passengers in Student- Driven Vehicles

Students who wish to travel to or from school in a car driven by a school-approved student driver, must also complete the *Student Vehicle Passenger Permission Form (Appendix I)* before undertaking any transport with the student driver.

The prospective passenger and their parents must read the Northside Christian College Student Drivers Policy in full, complete the form indicated above, return the form to the school with signatures from: the passenger's parents, the driver's parents, and the student. This means that all involved must read the policy prior to signing the form.

The form will then be returned to the school for the signature of the Director of Senior School and the Deputy Principal. Only after the arrangement is approved, by the Director of Senior School and the Deputy Principal will the school allow students to leave the school property as a passenger in a car driven by the student driver.

16.0 Late Arrival and Early Departure

There are numerous reasons why students may arrive late to school or leave before the end of the school day. In these cases, a note of explanation must be presented at the Office so that the College can accurately record this information and the College's database can be adjusted accordingly as per the College Attendance and Roll Marking Policy (Policy No. 33).

- Students are expected to be in attendance for Home Group. Prompt arrival to Home Group is expected as a great deal of vital information is discussed during this time.
- If students have Private Study periods first period in the morning or last period in the afternoon, mutual agreement may be organised between the VCE Learning Coordinator, the student and the parents / guardians for Home Study to be conducted off campus. However, it must be noted that this time is to be used for study purposes and not, for example, part-time employment.

• Regardless of any prior agreement students will still be required to sign in at the Office when they arrive at school, and sign out at the Office when they depart in the afternoon.

For additional information, please refer to the Attendance and Roll Marking Policy (Policy No. 33).

17.0 Promotion in the Senior School

Promotion to the next year level in Senior School is not automatic. In order for a Year 10 student to be promoted to Year 11 they would be expected to demonstrate a passing grade in each of the Year 10 Core subjects: English, Mathematics, Science and History / Geography.

In order for a Year 11 student to satisfactorily complete the year, and hence be promoted to Year 12, it is normally expected that he/she gain an 'S' in at least 10 Units of VCE study, including 2 Units of English.

Any student who has not satisfactorily completed a VCE unit of study by the end of Semester 1, will participate in an interview with the VCE Learning Coordinator. The purpose of this meeting is to investigate the possible causes of the unsatisfactory performance and to establish goals, supports or interventions to allow for improved performance during Semester 2.

At the end of Year 11, students who do not satisfactorily complete at least eight (8) VCE units may not move directly into Year 12. These students with their parents / guardians will be required to attend an interview with the VCE Learning Coordinator to decide on options for the following year. These may include repeating Year 11, selecting an alternative program to complete their VCE over three years, considering an alternative pathway such as the Vocational Major, or moving to Year 12 with attached conditions that would be reviewed into the year.

Each student in the Senior School will have their academic performance regularly reviewed throughout the year and parents will be contacted when concerns are raised.

Senior School students who do not meet the minimum requirements of satisfactory completion of units required for their year level, will undergo an individual review. This review may include:

- The grades scored in the subject that the student wishes to pursue at VCE level.
- The student's future pathway in education and training.
- Any specific circumstances related to the student's performance and/or absences
- The concerns of parents.

The review will have one of the following outcomes:

- The student is not permitted to proceed to the next year level and may be offered the option of repeating.
- The student is permitted to proceed to the next level on probation. For students on probation, special requirements will be established regarding the student's conduct and performance (including attendance). This will be followed by a further review during Term 1 of the following year.
- The student is permitted to proceed to the next year level.

For additional information, please refer to the Student Promotions Policy (Policy No. 25).

18.0 VCE (Baccalaureate)

The VCE (Baccalaureate) is an additional form of recognition for those students who choose to undertake the demands of studying both a higher level mathematics and a language in their VCE program of study.

To be eligible to receive the VCE (Baccalaureate), the student must satisfactorily complete the VCE and receive a study score for each prescribed study component.

The VCE program of study must include:

- a Unit 3–4 sequence in English or Literature or English Language with a study score of 30 or above; or a Unit 3–4 sequence in EAL with a study score of 33 or above
- a Unit 3-4 sequence in either Mathematical Methods or Specialist Mathematics
- a Unit 3-4 sequence in a VCE Language
- at least two other Unit 3–4 sequences.

Upon satisfactory completion of the VCE (Baccalaureate) program of study, the student will receive an appellation on their VCE certificate. If a student has previously satisfied their VCE and received a VCE certificate; they will not automatically receive a subsequent VCE Baccalaureate certificate.

19.0 Useful Links

Victorian Certificate of Education (VCE)

Further details and information about study designs and administration of the VCE can be found at the VCAA website:

www.vcaa.vic.edu.au

The VCAA decides the timing of examinations for Units 3 & 4. The major scheduled examination period during the year is October/November. This includes Performance and Oral examinations. Examination information can be found on the VCAA website:

VCE VCAA Exam Timetable

Victorian Tertiary Admissions Centre (VTAC)

Most applications for admission to tertiary institutions in Victoria are processed by VTAC. Applicants should nominate up to twelve course preferences. Year 12 students register their preferences through MyInfo on the VTAC website. Further details about ATAR calculation and scaling can also be found at the VTAC website:

www.vtac.edu.au

VTAC has a suite of online guides for students in Senior School. Follow the links below for pertinent information for each year level or type the title into your browser and it will take you to the correct page.

VTAC Year 12 Guide

VTAC Year 11 Guide

VTAC Year 10 Guide

myfuture

myfuture is Australia's free online career information service that assists career planning, career pathways and work transitions. Reviewed, redesigned and redeveloped in 2013, the easy-to-use website supports people to make career decisions, plan their career pathway and manage work transitions, whatever their career or life stage.

www.myfuture.edu.au

Evaluation

The information contained in this handbook at the date of publication is designed to reflect the VCAA regulations concerning the operation of the VCE. The VCAA website is the source of all current information. These policies will be reviewed and updated, as required, by the VCE Learning Coordinator and Deputy Principal in consultation with the Principal and VCE staff. Any additions or amendments will be given in writing to Students and Parents and will be incorporated into the VCE Student Policy Handbook (Policy No. 4) for 2023.

The policies referenced in this document will be effective from November 2022 – November 2023.

Related Policies

- Academic Integrity and Plagiarism Policy (Policy No. 5)
- Attendance and Roll Marking Policy (Policy No. 33)
- Behaviour Management Policy (Policy No. 36)
- Data Breach Policy (Policy No. 52)
- Distance Education Policy (Policy No. 8)
- Examination and VCE School Based Assessments Procedures (Policy No. 6)
- Grievance and Complaints Management Policy (Policy No. 14)
- Homework Policy (Policy No. 46)
- ICT and Internet Acceptable Use Policy (Policy No. 24)
- Inclusive Education Policy (Policy No. 27)
- Privacy Policy (Policy No. 16)
- Student Drivers Policy (Policy No. 34)
- Student Promotions Policy (Policy No. 25)
- VCE Staff Policy Handbook (Policy No. 3)



PARENT & STUDENT DECLARATION

Please complete the following and return to the Senior School Administration Office before the commencement of the 2023 VCE academic year.

I confirm that I have carefully read the Northside Christian College VCE Student Policy Handbook. I understand the policy and procedures and my responsibilities. I will obey the rules and instructions for the VCE / VCE VM and accept its disciplinary provisions. I have retained a copy of the policy document for future reference.

The Victorian Curriculum and Assessment Authority publishes rules which students must observe when preparing work for assessment.

The VCAA also lays out a policy regarding the students' responsibilities with the use of computers to produce work for assessment.

Student Name:	
Year Level:	
Student Signature:	
Date:/	
Parent / Guardian Name:	
Parent / Guardian Signature:	
Date:/	
Please return this page when it has	been completed.

Appendix B



Date:/
TO:
RE: UNSATISFACTORY RESULT IN AN ASSESSMENT TASK
Dear Parents and / Guardians,
At Northside Christian College, we seek to promote a positive culture of learning and encourage all students to strive towards achieving their best in all their subjects. At times, students may not perform as expected in particular assessment tasks, for a number of reasons. We believe that it is important that students are given an opportunity to demonstrate their knowledge in this assessment task and learn from any areas of misunderstanding.
Your child has not achieved a satisfactory result on the following assessment task:
Student Name: Subject: Subject Teacher: Title of Assessment Task: Result: N
In Units1-4, an 'N' result can be changed to an 'S' result after a redemption task; however, the score achieved on the first attempt for a 3 / 4 subject (e.g. 12/50) cannot be changed.
Your child is being afforded the opportunity to re-sit this Assessment Task in order to achieve a satisfactory result. Your child is asked to re-sit this Task on/ atpm. Failure to attend on this day, without provision of a medical certificate, may result in the 'N' outcome remaining.
Your child is encouraged to seek assistance from the subject teacher.
Please feel free to contact the subject teacher or Director of Senior School if you have any concerns or enquiries about your child and their progress.
Yours sincerely,
Mrs Lenna Waters Subject Teacher Director of Senior School

Northcide Christian College Inc. | Principal: Michael Bond | Registered No: 1787 | ABN: 59 805 270 397 Address: 31 McLeans Road, Bundoora VIC 3883 | Phone: (03) 9467 2499 | www.ncc.vic.edu.au Enrolments: enrol@ncc.vic.edu.au | Administration: ncc@ncc.vic.edu.au



EXTENSION OF TIME FOR VCE OUTCOMES

Student Name
Subject
Unit Number
Details of work to be completed
Original Date for submission:// Requested Date for submission://
Please explain the reason for seeking an extension of time. Attach any evidence supporting your request such as a medical certificate or funeral notice is requested.
Student Signature Date:/
Parent / Guardian Signature Date:/
Extension Approved: YES / NO Extended Due Date: / /
Reason for refusal of request:
Teacher Signature
Director of Senior School Signature
Copy returned to Subject Teacher: YES / NO Copy returned to Student: YES / NO
Please note that an application for extension will not be automatically approved. Allow two days for administrative processing.



ALTERNATE SAC & SAT DATE DUE TO AN APPROVED ABSENCE

At Northside Christian College, we seek to promote a positive culture of learning and encourage all students to strive towards achieving their best. As a result, all missed SACs need to be completed as quickly as possible after the set SAC date. All missed SACs are made up after school on one of two afternoons determined by the current timetable. The SAC date is indicated below. Failure to attend on the required date will result in an N unless the student is unwell on the day of the SAC and an additional medical certificate is provided. Students must be present at the Senior School Office by 3:15pm to begin their SAC.

Student Name:				
Subject:				
Subject <u>Teacher</u>				
Title of Assessment Task:		-		
Original Date of SAC:// New Date for	_/	_		
Please explain the reason for requesting an alternate SAC date. Provision of evidence, such as medical certificate or funeral notice is required.				
Student Signature	Date:	/_	/	
Parent / Guardian Signature				
Request Approved: YES / NO				
Subject Teacher's Signature	Date:	_/_	_/	
Director of Senior School	Date:	/	_/	
Please note that an application for an alternate SAC date wi student must establish clear grounds in adherence with Norl regarding alternate SAC dates. This policy is explained in th	thside Christian Col	lege's p	olicy	



	WITHDRAWAL FROM UNIT FORM
Year Level	
Date of Request://	
Current VCE Subjects (Please list	t all subjects/units)
	4)
2)	
3)	
Changes requested as follows: (P	Please circle unit number)
Withdrawal Unit	1 / 2 / 3 / 4 Teacher's Signature
Requested Unit	1 / 2 / 3 / 4 Teacher's Signature
Have you checked the blocking to see if this w	orks?
Requested Unit	
Withdrawal Unit	1 / 2 / 3 / 4 Teacher's Signature
Have you checked the blocking to see if this w	orks?
	uesting the above changes
Please note: A change of subject families any additional fees incurr	t may incur an additional Edrolo fee. The College will invoice ed as a result of changing subjects. This fee (if applicable) must
Please note: A change of subject families any additional fees incurr be paid in order for the subject ch	t may incur an additional Edrolo fee. The College will invoice ed as a result of changing subjects. This fee (if applicable) must
Please note: A change of subject families any additional fees incurribe paid in order for the subject ch	t may incur an additional Edrolo fee. The College will invoice ed as a result of changing subjects. This fee (if applicable) must ange to be approved.
Please note: A change of subject families any additional fees incurr be paid in order for the subject ch Student Signature	t may incur an additional Edrolo fee. The College will invoice ed as a result of changing subjects. This fee (if applicable) must ange to be approved.
Please note: A change of subject families any additional fees incurring the paid in order for the subject ches Student Signature	t may incur an additional Edrolo fee. The College will invoice ed as a result of changing subjects. This fee (if applicable) must ange to be approved. Date:/
Please note: A change of subject families any additional fees incurred be paid in order for the subject ches Student Signature	t may incur an additional Edrolo fee. The College will invoice ed as a result of changing subjects. This fee (if applicable) must ange to be approved. Date:// Date://
Please note: A change of subject families any additional fees incurribe paid in order for the subject ch Student Signature	t may incur an additional Edrolo fee. The College will invoice ed as a result of changing subjects. This fee (if applicable) must ange to be approved. Date:/ Date:/ The consultation of the Director of Senior School.
Please note: A change of subject families any additional fees incurred be paid in order for the subject change of Student Signature	t may incur an additional Edrolo fee. The College will invoice ed as a result of changing subjects. This fee (if applicable) must ange to be approved. Date:/ Date:/ The consultation of the Director of Senior School.
Please note: A change of subject families any additional fees incurred be paid in order for the subject change of Student Signature	t may incur an additional Edrolo fee. The College will invoice ed as a result of changing subjects. This fee (if applicable) must ange to be approved. Date:/ Date:/ Te
Please note: A change of subject families any additional fees incurred be paid in order for the subject change of Student Signature	t may incur an additional Edrolo fee. The College will invoice ed as a result of changing subjects. This fee (if applicable) must ange to be approved. Date:/ Date:/ The must be approved by the end of week 2 of Unit 1,2 or 3. Office. If the earlier any changes may be made. This allows students to be practical. Approval will be based on subject enrolment numbers.
Please note: A change of subject families any additional fees incurr be paid in order for the subject ch Student Signature Parent / Guardian Signature Director of Senior School Signatu Withdrawals may take place at any All requested to enrol in a new subject of the Senior School The earlier the request is submitted.	t may incur an additional Edrolo fee. The College will invoice ed as a result of changing subjects. This fee (if applicable) must ange to be approved. Date:/ Date:/ The must be approved by the end of week 2 of Unit 1,2 or 3. Office. If the earlier any changes may be made. This allows students to be practical. Approval will be based on subject enrolment numbers.



Office Use Only:	
Date Received:	

2024 ACCELERATION APPLICATION FORM Completed by Year 9 2023

VCE Units 1 & 2 Student Name:				
I wish to apply to accelerate in the following VCE Unit 1 & 2 subject (choose one, plus one alternative):				
Preferred subject: Alternative:				
Please note: The College is offering Unit 1/2 Business Management and Unit 1/2 Health and Human Development as acceleration options on campus during 2023.				
Students who wish to accelerate in Maths MUST do so through VSV. (G Maths Unit 1/2, teacher recommendation; M Methods Unit 1/2, test required.) Please see Mrs Waters for further information.				
Please outline you reason(s) for wanting to undertake VCE	E studies in this subject a year early:			
Lundoustand that being accounted to accolorate in a VCE of	subject in Very 10 deer not exempt me from undertaking six			
VCE and / or VCE / VET subjects (or equivalent) in Year 1	subject in Year 10 does not exempt me from undertaking six I1 and five Unit 3/4 (or equivalent) subjects in Year 12.			
I understand that acceleration into a VCE subject is not automatic and depends upon my academic performance in Year 9, the availability of places, and the decision of a Selection Panel. <u>I understand that this is a provisional acceptance and that there will be a review in Term 4.</u> I also understand that late changes to subject selection may not be able to be accommodated for.				
Self-Evaluation Checklist In order to be successful in accelerating in a VCE subject you need to have the qualities referenced in the list below. Please tick off the qualities that you feel that you exhibit in your Year 9 studies.				
☐ Self-motivated ☐ Timely completion of assigned learning tasks	□ Confident / effective using Schoology □ Excellent attendance & punctual for Home Group			
Communicates effectively with teachers	Uses diary / other tool(s) to manage learning			
VCE Acceleration Commitment				
I understand that when undertaking a VCE acceleration su				
☐ I will often have a minimum of 45 minutes of additional h				
☐ I will have a full schedule of classes every day and no st				
An accelerated class takes the place of a Year 10 elective. If I decide to drop this class during Early Commencement, I may be unable to enrol in my preferred elective(s).				
☐ I understand this will be a provisional acceptance and th	ere will be a review in Term 4.			
Student signature: Date:				
Parent / Guardian signature:	Date:			
Students requesting to accelerate in a subject in 2023 will Please return to the College Senior School Administra				
Office	Use Only			
After due consideration to the previous results, recommen of the applicant:	ndation of Year 9 teachers, behaviour reports and work ethic			
Director of Learning Senior School: Acceleration ap	proved: YES / NO / Additional Review needed – Sept 2023			
Signature: Date:	_			



VCE STUDENT LOW ATTENDANCE REDEMPTION FORM

Student Name	
Subject	
Current Attendance Level	
Number of Hours to be Redeemed after school	
List of overdue/additional course work to be completed during required redemption l school.	
Student Signature Date:/	<i>!</i>
VCE Subject Teacher Signature Date:/	<i>I</i>
Director of Senior School Signature Date:/	
Additional Comments	
Submit completed form to the Director of Senior School at the end of each session user redeemed.	until the hours
	DOL Initial
Date:/ Hours Redeemed: Hours Remaining	



STATEMENT OF AUTHORSHIP FORM

I certify that the attached material is my original work. No other person's work has been used without due acknowledgement. Except where I have clearly stated that I have used some of this material elsewhere, it has not been presented by me for examination in any other course or subject at this or any other institution. I understand that the work submitted may be reproduced and / or communicated for the purpose of detecting plagiarism.

I acknowledge that any SAC I undertake is subject to validation. A Validation Task may be used to confirm, or moderate the mark gained on the original SAC if there is suspicion that I utilised unreferenced or anyone else's work during the writing of the SAC.

Full Student Name	
Subject	
Document Title	
Student Signature	
Date	

Please note: Additional information about academic integrity and plagiarism and appropriate behaviour during school assessments is documented in the College's Academic Integrity and Plagiarism Policy and the VCE Student Policy Handbook.



Authentication of remote SAC work Northside Christian College

	That is a second of the second			
Student Name				
Subject				
Task				
Date				
Time				
Conditions of	A student's work must be their own.			
the SAC	 Students will be given only one attempt at this task. 			
Environment	 Students are permitted to type their responses. 			
	 No calculator is allowed in this SAC. 			
	Materials supplied			
	• .			
	Instructions			
	All written responses must be in English.			

Please sign the following declarations as they relate to your completion of < Unit, Subject, Outcome>. Please submit immediately following completion of the SAC and upload to the designated submission point.

No access is allowed to mobile phones for any reason, except to access the teacher in regard to clarification of a SAC question. (if permitted)

IF YOU COMPLETED THIS TASK SUPERVISED BY A PARENT/GUARDIAN, SIGN BELOW.

I declare that all work completed on this SAC is my own work and has been completed under the conditions specified in the SAC instructions - including time allowed and materials allowed for each section of the SAC. No person other than the teacher has been consulted during the time of the SAC for help on answering any question.

Student signature			
Date		Time	

I declare that my child has completed the SAC under the conditions specified in the instructions and has not accessed any help (notes or persons) other than what was allowed for this SAC.

	Parent/guardian			
L	signature			
	Date		Time	

IF YOU COMPLETED THIS TASK UNSPERVISED, SIGN BELOW.

I completed this SAC without parent/guardian supervision as they were unavailable due to other commitments during the time of the SAC.

Student signature		
Date	Time	

Appendix I



STUDENT VEHICLE APPLICATION

Student Name			
Year Level			
Vehicle Description (Car Make / Colour)			
Registration Number			
Type of Insurance and Company			
I,(student name) agree to guidelines of the Northside Christian College <i>Student Drivers</i> F	o abide by all ti Policy.	he cond	itions and
Student Signature	Date: _	_/_	_/
Parent / Guardian Signature	Date:	_/	/
Director of Senior School Learning	Date:	_/	
Deputy Principal	Date:		
Approved			
☐ Not Approved			

Note: A photocopy of the student's driver licence must be attached to this form.

Note: If the student intends to drive any car other than the one registered on this form, it must also be registered with the College.



STUDENT VEHICLE PASSENGER PERMISSION FORM

This form must be completed by a parent/guardian of any student intending to travel to the College as a passenger of a student who drives a car to and from the College. We accept all conditions detailed in the College's Student Driver Policy. Year Level Vehicle Description (Car Make / Colour) Registration Number Type of Insurance and Company Parent Permission to drive to Northside Christian College and take I give permission for..... the passenger indicated on this form. I am aware of the College requirements regarding students driving to school. Parent / Guardian Signature...... Date: ___/__/ Parent / Guardian of Passenger I give permission for _____ to be driven to and from Northside Christian . I am aware of the College requirements regarding College by students driving to school. Parent / Guardian Signature...... Date: ____/__ Student I agree to adhere to the College requirements regarding students driving a car to school. Details of why the student is driving other students:

Not Approved

Appendix J

AUTHORITY TO PUBLISH RESULTS AND PLACEMENTS FORM

	that your ATAR is above 80, do you agree to have yedia organisations?	our name,	, picture a	nd ATAR
☐ Yes	□ No			
	that your ATAR is above 80, do you agree to have yollege publications at Northside Christian College inc			
☐ Yes	□ No			
	that you are Dux of the College, do you give permiss promote this to the school community at Presentation			to
☐ Yes	□ No			
	that you are the Dux of the College, do you agree to d to media organisations?	have you	r name, p	icture and
☐ Yes	□ No			
	that you are the Dux of the College, do you agree to ed in College publications at Northside Christian Coll	•		
☐ Yes	□ No			
	ee for your post-school pathway details to be promote bsite, social media, newsletters and other school pu			nmunity
☐ Yes	□ No			
Student Name				
Student Signat	ture	Date:	_//_	

NOTE: In addition to your own direct access, your ATAR will also be provided to the school for use by the Principal and their authorised nominee for course and careers counselling. Your ATAR cannot be shared with other individuals at your school or organisations unless you give us your written permission.



ICT @ NCC

SENIOR SCHOOL STUDENT CONTRACT FOR USE OF PERSONAL TECHNOLOGY AT SCHOOL

'Technology' or 'Device' in this document refers to a wide range of hardware, including smart phones, tablets, cameras and laptops.

The contents of this contract can be changed at any time. Any changes will be communicated to relevant students.

At Northside Christian College we recognise the benefits of having access to technology to enhance learning and communication. As such, we allow Senior School students to bring personal devices to school, assuming they abide by the principles listed in this contract. It needs to be understood that Senior School students are not supervised at all times. Students and parents must agree to this contract for the student to be allowed to use personal devices at school.

.

During class and study periods, technology is to be used only for educational purposes. My device will only be used in class when instructed by the classroom teacher, for the purpose allowed by the teacher. Teachers may still require me to use a physical folder, exercise book etc.

The device is my property and I am fully responsible for its care, maintenance and storage at all times. Any misuse of my device by other students may be my responsibility and financial liability.

Passwords must be kept confidential. I accept full responsibility for any use of my email accounts or similar.

At recess and lunch my device should be used according to acceptable College guidelines. The use of mobile phones during school hours is a privilege, and I will use discretion. Using my phone in front of students who do not have such privileges causes confusion and sets a bad example. If this causes problems I understand the Senior School privileges may be modified or withdrawn.

Any software installed or used at school will meet the ethical and moral standards of the college, and must be age appropriate. Copyright laws should be adhered to. Digital devices may only be used at school on the understanding that teachers may check the contents of the internal memory (hard drive).

I will not capture an image or record sound or video, without the consent of the people being recorded. Content of images, sounds or videos must meet the ethical and moral standards of the college and must never be used to bully or offend anyone, or reflect poorly on the reputation of the college.

Images, sounds or videos should not be shared or uploaded without the permission of everyone in them. Anything that displays the school uniform or logo, is on school grounds or is recorded during school hours cannot be uploaded or shared without the approval of senior college staff.

Bringing personal technology to school is a privilege, and I accept that it may be removed if I fail to keep this Contract.

Signed:	Student's name (Print)	Signature
Witnessed by parent/s:	Guardian 1	Guardian 2

Appendix L

VET STUDENT TRAVEL FORM

Student Name
Year Level
Home School of Student: Northside Christian College
1. VET Course and Year of Study:
2. Host School name and address of venue delivering VET Course:
3. Day / Time of weekly VET Course at Host School:
4. Main mode of transport from Home School to Host School for access to weekly VET course:
 Students driving a vehicle must complete the appropriate documentation from the College's Student Drivers Policy (Policy No. 34)
Please state any alternative travel arrangements:
5. What time will VET student be required to leave the College to travel to the Host school each
week?
6. Procedures required when leaving the Home School for VET class at Host School:
 Any student leaving Northside Christian College grounds must sign out before leaving the College and sign back in upon returning to the College. Students may not sign any other student in or out.
 The College has documented complete procedures in the Attendance and Roll Marking Policy. (Policy No. 33)
7. Will the VET student be accompanied by others in this travel to the Host School each week? If so
who will the VET student be accompanied by?
8. Has the VET student and their parent/guardian signed the 'N.M.VET Cluster Student Commitment
Form (if applicable) which clarifies the expectations for VET student behaviour'?
9. Has the student been given a copy of the policy on the 'N.M.VET Cluster External VET student
Behaviour and Consequences (if applicable) for misbehaviour'?
10. If there are any changes to the travel arrangements described above, the VET student must inform Mrs Waters and a new Travel Form is to be completed and signed by all parties.
I have read and understood the above guidelines and agree to abide by all the rules stated in this agreement. Furthermore, I understand Northside Christian College has other relevant policy documents relating to attendance, behaviour, student travel in vehicles and the completion of assigned school work. I understand that my privileges will be suspended or revoked if I do not follow these guidelines.
Student Signature Date://
We have read and understand the guidelines outlined in this document and agree that our child should abide by the above rules. I give permission for my child to leave the College grounds to travel to the VET course referenced in this document.
Parent / Guardian Name
Parent / Guardian Signature Date:/

2024 Year 11 Home Study Arrangements



udent Name:		/Parant	/Guardian) sive :	nermission for	r my obild	
be absent from sch		_			-	to he
ndertaken at home.	oor dorning the		ted below, for the	. po.poses o.	p	
Veek A	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday	
eriod 1						
Period 2						1
Period 3	Chapel					1
Period 4						1
Period 5						
Period 6						
Week B	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday	ī
Period 1						1
Period 2						1
Period 3]
Period 4	Christian Life Studies					1
Period 5						1
Period 6						1
Shaded areas denote to For each square who Use a highlighter to lay is flexible and you will come late or leave highlighted them. Keep hat you will arrive at he highlight the periods you	ere you have a colour the squ have spares be early, please he in mind that you	a timetabled of ares where yoth at the beginghlight the bould cannot contain and study for	class or VET, plea you would like to ginning and end or ox AND but write me both late and l r the first two peri	have permis the day and y the word 'OR' leave early. If ods then leave	e name of you sion for Home you are unsure in these boxes you know you (e after period 4	s Study. whether after yo for exan
What transport will th □ Public transport Student Signature	□ Private vehi	cle with parer	-			_
arent/Guardian Signa	ture			Date:		_



Non-Scoring VCE to Scoring VCE Parental Consent Form

Date of Request://	
Current VCE Subjects (Please	e list all subjects/units)
1)	4)
2)	5)
3)	
List Subjects to change from	Non-scoring to Scoring:
1)	4)
2)	5)
3)	6)
 above listed subject(S) are the f I will be required to complete I will only receive a study so I will not receive an ATAR u 	e the VCE exam for the chosen scored subject(s). ore for the Scored subject(s), nless I undertake four VCE scored subjects including English. npleting less than four scored subjects will impact my ability to apply fo
"I understand that the limited im above listed subject(S) are the f I will be required to complete I will only receive a study sc I will not receive an ATAR ur I further understand that con university courses based on	ollowing: e the VCE exam for the chosen scored subject(s). ore for the Scored subject(s), nless I undertake four VCE scored subjects including English. npleting less than four scored subjects will impact my ability to apply fo an ATAR
"I understand that the limited im above listed subject(S) are the f I will be required to complete I will only receive a study sc I will not receive an ATAR ur I further understand that con university courses based on	ollowing: e the VCE exam for the chosen scored subject(s). ore for the Scored subject(s), nless I undertake four VCE scored subjects including English. npleting less than four scored subjects will impact my ability to apply fo an ATAR
"I understand that the limited im above listed subject(S) are the f I will be required to complete I will only receive a study sc I will not receive an ATAR ur I further understand that con university courses based on	ollowing: e the VCE exam for the chosen scored subject(s). ore for the Scored subject(s), nless I undertake four VCE scored subjects including English. npleting less than four scored subjects will impact my ability to apply fo an ATAR
"I understand that the limited im above listed subject(S) are the f I will be required to complete I will only receive a study sc I will not receive an ATAR ur I further understand that con university courses based on Student Name Student Signature PARENT STATEMENT	ollowing: e the VCE exam for the chosen scored subject(s). ore for the Scored subject(s), nless I undertake four VCE scored subjects including English. npleting less than four scored subjects will impact my ability to apply for an ATAR Date:/
"I understand that the limited im above listed subject(S) are the f I will be required to complete I will only receive a study sc I will not receive an ATAR ur I further understand that con university courses based on Student Name Student Signature PARENT STATEMENT "I have read and understood the for less than four scored subject	ollowing: e the VCE exam for the chosen scored subject(s). ore for the Scored subject(s), nless I undertake four VCE scored subjects including English. npleting less than four scored subjects will impact my ability to apply for an ATAR Date:/
"I understand that the limited impabove listed subject(S) are the following listed subject(S) are the formal listed subject(S) are the first subject(S) are the fi	ollowing: e the VCE exam for the chosen scored subject(s). ore for the Scored subject(s), nless I undertake four VCE scored subjects including English. npleting less than four scored subjects will impact my ability to apply for an ATAR Date:/
"I understand that the limited impabove listed subject(S) are the following listed subject listed subject(S) are the following listed subject(S) are the first listed subject(S) a	ollowing: e the VCE exam for the chosen scored subject(s). ore for the Scored subject(s), nless I undertake four VCE scored subjects including English. mpleting less than four scored subjects will impact my ability to apply for an ATAR Date:/ E limited impacts of my child changing from non-scoring to scoring VCE is." (see above)



Non-Scoring VCE

If have read and understood the implications of completing my VCE with a focus on a non-scored assessment. I understand that if I do not receive scored assessments on my School-based Assessment tasks I will not receive a study score and therefore I will not receive an ATAR. I further understand that this will impact on my ability to apply for university courses based on my VCE results." Student Name Student Signature Date:/ PARENT STATEMENT I have read and understood the implications of my daughter/son completing their Year 12 year with this a focus on a non-scored assessment. I understand that if my daughter/son does not receive scored assessments on her/his School-based Assessment tasks she/he will not receive a study score and therefore will not receive an ATAR. I further understand that this will impact on her/his ability to apply for university courses based on her/his VCE results."		Parental Conse	nt Form		
assessment. I understand that if I do not receive scored assessments on my School-based Assessment tasks I will not receive a study score and therefore I will not receive an ATAR. I further understand that this will impact on my ability to apply for university courses based on my VCE results." Student Name Student Signature Date:/	STUDENT STATEMENT				
PARENT STATEMENT Thave read and understood the implications of my daughter/son completing their Year 12 year with this a focus on a non-scored assessment. I understand that if my daughter/son does not receive scored assessments on her/his School-based Assessment tasks she/he will not receive a study score and therefore will not receive an ATAR. I further understand that this will impact on her/his ability to apply for university courses based on her/his VCE results." Parent/Guardian Name Parent/Guardian Signature Date:/	assessment. I understand that if tasks I will not receive a study so	I do not receive scored ass core and therefore I will not	sessments on my S receive an ATAR.	School-based Asse I further understar	essment
PARENT STATEMENT If have read and understood the implications of my daughter/son completing their Year 12 year with this a focus on a non-scored assessment. I understand that if my daughter/son does not receive scored assessments on her/his School-based Assessment tasks she/he will not receive a study score and therefore will not receive an ATAR. I further understand that this will impact on her/his ability to apply for university courses based on her/his VCE results." Parent/Guardian Name Parent/Guardian Signature Date:/	Student Name				
I have read and understood the implications of my daughter/son completing their Year 12 year with this a focus on a non-scored assessment. I understand that if my daughter/son does not receive scored assessments on her/his School-based Assessment tasks she/he will not receive a study score and therefore will not receive an ATAR. I further understand that this will impact on her/his ability to apply for university courses based on her/his VCE results." Parent/Guardian Name Parent/Guardian Signature Date:/	Student Signature		Date:/		
a focus on a non-scored assessment. I understand that if my daughter/son does not receive scored assessments on her/his School-based Assessment tasks she/he will not receive a study score and therefore will not receive an ATAR. I further understand that this will impact on her/his ability to apply for university courses based on her/his VCE results." Parent/Guardian Name Parent/Guardian Signature Date:/	PARENT STATEMENT				
Parent/Guardian Signature Date:// Director of Senior School Signature Date://	a focus on a non-scored assessr assessments on her/his School-b therefore will not receive an ATA	ment. I understand that if mo based Assessment tasks s R. I further understand tha	ny daughter/son doo he/he will not receiv	es not receive sco ve a study score a	red nd
Director of Senior School Signature Date://	Parent/Guardian Name				
	Parent/Guardian Signature		Date:		
Please complete and return to the VCE Administration Office	Director of Senior School Signatu	ure	Date:		
	Please complete and return to	the VCE Administration	Office		
	·				

Appendix Q



GOING UP THE STREET AT LUNCH TIME - 2024

During the school day, the College assumes a duty of care for all students at Northside Christian College. Students are only able to leave the College grounds during the day with permission from their parents or caregiver. When permissions are provided, the College is able to transfer the duty of care to the parents or caregiver for the time the student is out of the College grounds. Year 11 and 12 students have the privilege of being allowed to leave the College grounds during lunch times. There are limits to this privilege:

- Students are only allowed to leave the College to go up the street at the appointed lunch time and at no other time. Students must arrive back before the bell at the end of lunch.
- Students are only allowed to go to the shops along Plenty Road, as far down Plenty Road as KFC and as far up Plenty Road as ALDI.
- Students are not allowed to go anywhere else (i.e. Norris bank Reserve).
- Students are not to board a tram or any other form of public transport during the lunch break.
- Students may drive their own vehicle down to the shops but no other student is permitted to travel in any car other than their own.
- Any student leaving the College grounds must sign out before leaving the College and sign back in upon returning to the College. Students may not sign any other student in or out.
- Students are not permitted to purchase lunch for students in other year levels.

Student Name
Year Level
I have read and understood the above guidelines and agree to abide by all the rules stated in this agreement. Furthermore, I understand the College has other relevant policy documents relating to attendance, behaviour, student travel in vehicles and the completion of assigned school work. I understand that my privileges will be suspended or revoked if I do not follow these guidelines.
Student Signature
We have read and understand the guidelines outlined in this document and agree that our child should abide by the above rules. I give permission for my child to leave the College grounds at lunchtimes to purchase lunch from the local shops.
Parent / Guardian Signature
**A new permission slip must be filled out and returned each year in order to receive "off-campus" privileges.

Notes



31 McLeans Road, Bundoora, VIC, 3083 www.ncc.vic.edu.au